NOTICE OF MEETING AND AGENDA

GHI BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OPEN MEETING
Begins after the GDC Open Meeting Adjourns.
Thursday, June 2, 2022
VIRTUAL ZOOM MEETING ROOM
Members & Visitors may attend remotely.

1. Approval of Agenda
2. Statements of Closed Meetings
a.  Statement of an Informal Hearing Held in a Closed Meeting on May 16, 2022 (Attachment #1)
b.  Statement of a Closed Meeting Held on May 19, 2022 (Attachment #2)
c.  Statement of a Closed Meeting Held on May 24, 2022 (Attachment #3)
d. Statement of a Closed Meeting Held on June 2, 2022 (Attachment #4)
3. Visitors and Members (Comment Period)
4. Approval of Membership Applications
5. Committee Reports
6. For Action or Discussion

a. Approve Minutes of the Special Open Meeting Held on Agril 14, 2022 - 2 Minutes Discussion/Action
(Attachment #5)

b. Approve Minutes of the Regular Open Meeting held on April 21, 2022 - 2 Minutes Discussion/Action
(Attachment #6) '

¢. Proposed Rules for Pools and Outdoor Recreation Structures — (Attachments 10 Minutes  Discussion/Action
#Ta-7c)

d. Member Comments re: Proposed Rules for Impervious Surfaces and Water 10 Minutes Discussion/Action
Run-off Capture and Control Requirements — (Attachments #3a-8c)

e. Proposed Revisions to GHI's Complaint Procedures — (Attachment #9a-9c¢) 10 Minutes Discussion/Action

f. Review GHI's Replacement Reserves Program — (Attachment #10) 5 Minutes Discussion/Action

g. Yards and Exteriors Inspectron Program 15 Minutes Discussion/Action

h. Motion to Hold Closed Meeting ori June 16, 2022 2 Minutes  Action

7. Items of Information
a.  President’s Items
b. Board Members’ ftems
c. Audit Cemmittes’s Iiems
d. Manager’s ltems

Ed James
Secretary

Note: At 10:15 PM, the Board may immediately move to Irem 7, even if the preceding agenda items have not been
completed.



GREENBELT HOMES, INC.
HAMILTON PLACE, GREENBELT, MARYLAND 20770
Ares Code (301) 4744161 Fax (301) 474-4006

MANAGER’S MEMORANDUM
TO: GHI Board of Directors FROM:
Eldon Ralph, General Manager % 6'?&%:& .
DATE: May 25, 2022

SUBJECT: Items for the GHI OPEN Board Meeting on June 2, 2022

6a. Approve Minutes of the Special Open Meeting held on April 14, 2022 — {Attachment #5)

Motion: I move that the Board of Directors approve the minutes of the Special Open Meeting held
on April 14, 2022 (as presented/as revised).

6b. Approve Minutes of the Regular Open Meeting held on April 21. 2022 — (Attachment #6)

Motion: T move that the Board of Directors approve the minutes of the Regular Open Meeting held
on April 21, 2022 (as presented/as revised).

6c.  Proposed Rules for Pools and Outdoor Recreation Structures — (Attachments #7a-7c)

On April 1, 2021, the Board established an Outdoors Structures Liability Task Force to recommend
changes in policies and procedures to mitigate GHI's liability associated with certain types of outdoor
structures that members wish to install. On December 2, 2021, the Board reviewed member comments
about the task force’s report and requested that legal counsel draft revised rules, based on the report.

Attorney Joe Douglass proposed that the current Member Handbook rule XTIL SWIMMING POOLS
AND ORNAMENTAL PONDS (attachment #7a ) be replaced with XIII. POOLS AND OUTDOOR
RECREATION EQUIPMENT (attachment #7b). The proposed new rule states that as a condition of GHI
approval, each member who wishes to install a pool or recreation equipment must sign a Recreation
Structure Indemnification Agreement (attachment #7¢).

The proposed new rule also states that each member who wishes to install a pool or recreation equipment
must obtain and at all times maintain liability insurance providing coverage for any injury or damage
arising, in connection with use of the pool or recreation equipment. Ms. Theresa Melson, Senior Vice
President of USI Services (GHI’s insurance broker) stated as follows: “ A standard HOG policy usually
has a personal liability limit of $300,000 or $500,000. From what I understand, the cost for the $500,000
is not significantly more than the $300,000 so many of the brokers have started using the $500,000 limir

1



as a matter of practice. We generally recommend the higher limit on these policies — if a swimming pool
or trampoline is involved, we may also recommend consideration of an umbrella since both of these
amenities are considered “higher risk”. Actually, many commercial insurance policies are now
excluding coverage for trampolines and “bounce houses” due to the high risk involved”.

After reviewing Attorney Douglass’s opinion on January 6, 2022, the Board decided to send the proposed
Janguage back to the task force for review, consideration, and recommendation on adoption. Mr. Joe
Ralbovsky, Chair of the Outdoors Structures Liability Task Force, informed the Manager that he reached
out to task force members asking if they were willing to convene virtually to discuss this assignment from
the Board, but did not get a response. Mr. Ralbovsky stated that he approves the rule changes that
Attorney Douglass recommended.

This item is on the agenda for discussion and action.

Suggested motion: 1 move that the Board of Directors adopt GHI Member Handbook rule XIII.
POOLS AND OUTDOOR RECREATION EQUIPMENT (as presented/as revised).

6d.  Member Comments re: Proposed Rules for Impervious Surfaces and Water Run-off Capture and
Control Reguirements — (Attachments #8a-8¢).

On April 7, 2022, the Board of Directors reviewed rules that the Stormwater Sub-Committee
recommended, regarding Impervious Surfaces (attachment #8a) and Run-off Capture and Control
Requirements (attachment #8b) and requested the manager to obtain comments from GHI's membership
about the proposed rules, over a period of 30 days.

Eleven members submitted comments that are documented in attachment #8c.
This item is on the agenda for discussion and action.

Suggested motion: I move that the Board of Directors direct the Stormwater Sub-Committee to
review member comments about the recommended Impervious Surface Rules and Rule regarding
Run-off Capture and Control Requirements, and to revise the proposed rules, as necessary.

6e. Proposed Revisions to GHI's Complaint Procedures — (Attachment #9a-9¢}

During a work session between the Board of Directors and GHI's legal counsel Joe Douglass on March
31, 2022, it was discussed that GHI’s member complaint procedures do not expressly address complaints
against non-member tenants or by a non-member against a member regarding an incident that occurs on
GHI’s premises.

Mr. Douglass was subsequently requested to revise GHI's member complaint procedures. Attachment #9¢
is Mr. Douglass’ response to GHI's request and the revised procedures he drafted are presented as
attachment #9a (a red-lined copy) and attachment #9b (a clean copy).

This item is on the agenda for discussion and action.

Suggested motion: I move that the Board of Directors direct the Manager to solicit member
comments regarding proposed revisions to GHI Complaint Procedures (as presented/as revised) via
GHDYI’s e-newsletter, over a period of 30 days.



6f. Review GHI's Replacement Reserves Program — { Attachment #10)

In 1987, the Board created the RR fund for GHI's three (3) groups of homes - 992 frame, 579 masonry
(318 brick, 256 block, 5 pre-fabricated units), and 29 larger homes. The RR fund is the amount of money
set aside from members’ co-op fees to fund the future replacement of major components. In 2018, GHI
hired DMA Inc. to revise the RR plan. Taking into consideration the fund balance at the beginning of
2018, an average projected annual inflation rate of 2.49%, an average annual interest of 2.9% on reserve
fund deposit accounts, the life expectancy and replacement cost of each building component, DMA
calculated the contributions that were necessary to fund the replacement of the various components over a
30-year period.

Attachment #10 provides a breakdown of the estimated future repair and replacement costs for each home

group as of December 31, 2021, and the annual percentage increases in member contributions that are
being charged to fund the replacements.

The audited reserves’ fund balance at the end of 2021 was $5,800,679; the estimated 2021 fund balance in
the DMA report was $5,496,520. In accordance with the provisions of Maryland Code, Corporations and
Associations Section 5-6B-26.1, GHI must hire a reserves’ advisor firm to update the reserves’ plan at
least every 5 years; hence the next update is due in 2023.

The Board may wish to consider holding a work session for a more in-depth discussion of the replacement
reserves program. In preparation for a work session, it would be helpful if the Board informed staff about
the various aspects of the program it would like to review. Staff thinks that there are several important
factors that should be considered before the study is updated in 2023, including but not limited to the
following:

e The average rate of return that GHI estimates it will earn on future investments of reserve fund

balances.

e Who is responsible for funding the future replacement of underground water supply pipes for
frame homes; GHI or WSSC?

e Who is responsible for funding the replacement/repairs of main storm drains on GHI’s property;
GHI or the City of Greenbelt?

e What portion of the unreserved operating fund of $3,832,234 at the end of 2021, should be
allocated to the replacement reserves fund?

This item is on the agenda for discussion and acticn.

Suggested motion: I move that the Board of Directors hold a work session on ____toreview
GHI’s replacement reserves program.

6g.  Yards and Exteriors’ Inspection Program

Two Board members requested that this item be placed on the agenda for discussion. The Director who
initiated the request felt that the 2022 Exterior Buildings and Yards Inspection Program should be
cancelled, because the inspection form has a number of errors, the list of courts to be inspected that staff



initially posted on the website was inaccurate, and he didn’t think that that there are enough ‘eyeballs’ on
the project to keep it correct.

GHI's Community Beautification Program (CBP) was implemented following a 1983 member petition at
an annual membership meeting, requesting enforcement of regulations and subsequent action by the
Board of Directors. In 2017, the Board asked a Yard Solutions Task Force to review the program and
recommend solutions to its reported problems. On February 15, 2018, the Board accepted a report from
the Yard Solutions Task Force which recommended changes to the program, including a new inspection
form that was used to conduct the program during 2018 and 2019.

Due to feedback from several members, the Board decided to forego a program of community
beautification inspections during 2020 and establish an Exterior Building and Yards Inspection Task
Force to recommend the scope of an exterior building and yard inspection program that should be
implemented. On February 18, 2021, the Board accepted the task force’s report and stipulated that one
third of GHI units must be inspected each year, using a revised inspection form that the task force
prepared.

On October 17, 2021, the Board reviewed staff’s_report on the 2021 Exterior and Yard Inspection
Program and on February 17, 2022 the Board directed staff to utilize the same form that was used in 2021
for this year’s program. Last Tuesday, staff published a corrected list of courts whose units will be
inspected this year, beginning on June 6.

This item is on the agenda for discussion.

6h. Motion to Hold Closed Meeting on June 16, 2022

Suggested motion: I move to hold a Closed Meeting of the Board of Directors at 7:00 PM on June
16, 2022.



Item 2a. Attachment #1

Statement of an Informal Hearing Held in a Closed Meeting on May 16. 2022

On May 16, 2022, the Board of Directors held an Informal Hearing with a member regarding a
complaint matter. The hearing was conducted in a closed meeting, via internet audio/video

conference.

The closed meeting was authorized by sub-paragraph § 5-6B-19 (e)(1)(iv) of the Maryland
Cooperative Housing Act.

The motion to hold the hearing was approved by a 9-0 vote of the Board of Directors during a
closed meeting on April 21, 2022.



Item 2b. Attachment #2

Statement of Closed Meeting Held on May 19, 2022

GHI'’s Board of Directors held a closed meeting at 8:10 PM on May 19, 2022, via internet
audio/video conference to discuss the following matters, as specified in the noted sub-paragraphs
of the Maryland Cooperative Housing Corporation Act § 5-6B-19 (e) (1):

Approve Minutes of the Closed Meeting held on April 7, 2022. L (vii)

2.

Consider Approval of the Following Contracts: ; vi) |

e 2022 Contract for Replacing Roofs on Frame Homes and Additions — 2™ | |
reading

e 2022 Contract for Exterior Repairs to Masonry Units — 2™ reading |

» Extension of Contract with Current IT Services Provider — 1** and only i
reading |

3. Request by a Non-Member for Permission to Reside in a GHI Unit (V)

4. Request by a Member for a Rental Permit Extension L (V)

5. Request by a Member for an Exception to the Two-Year Profit Limitation P (v)
Provision in the MOC - B l

6. Member Financial Matter. - (viii)

During the meeting, the Board authorized the following contracts:

A contract with RRH Associates to replace the shingles and gutters on the roofs at 136
frame homes and 35 additions with Certain Teed Landmark Pro AR architectural shingles
and new gutters, at the contractor’s bid price of $483,292, with a 10% allowance for
contingencies, for a total contract amount not to exceed $531,621.20.

A contract with American Exteriors Inc. to undertake masonry repairs at 15 locations, at
the contractor’s bid of $31,280, plus 10% for contingencies, for a total not to exceed
$34,408.

A contract addendum with FedSolutions (FSI), to manage GHI's Information Technology
systems from July 1, 2022 to no later than February 28, 2023, at a monthly cost of $2,336
plus an allowance of 10% for unanticipated charges; with a termination clause included
in the contract addendum, whereby either GHI or FedSolutions could terminate the
contract by serving the other party a 90-day notice of termination.

The motion to hold the closed meeting was approved during the open meeting of May 19, 2022,
by Directors Bilyeu, Brodd, Hess, James, Lambert, Luly, McKinley, Mortimer, and Whipple.



Ttem 2¢. Attachment #3

Statement of a Closed Meeting on May 24, 2022

On May 24, 2022, the members of the Member Handbook and Board Policy Manual
Standardization Task Force, comprised of Board members Erin Bilyeu, Deborah McKinley,
Heather Mortimer, and staff member Eldon Ralph held a closed meeting, via internet audio/video

conference.

The closed meeting was authorized by sub-paragraph § 5-6B-19 (e)(1)(VI) of the Maryland
Cooperative Housing Act.

The motion to hold the closed meeting was approved by an 3-0 vote of Board members Bilyeu,
McKinley and Mortimer during an open meeting on May 24, 2022. The closed meeting began
immediately after the open meeting ended.



Item 2d. Attachment #4

Statement of Closed Meeting Held on June 2. 2022

GHI’s Board of Directors held a closed meeting at 7:00 PM on June 2, 2022, via internet
audio/video conference to discuss the following matters, as specified in the noted sub-paragraphs
of the Maryland Cooperative Housing Corporation Act § 5-6B-19 {e) (1):

" 1. Approve Minutes of the Closed Meeting held on April 21, 2022. (vii)
| 2. Request by a Non-Member for Permission to Reside in a GHI Unit (iv)
| 3, Rental Permit Request from a Member . @iv)
4. Legal Counsel’s Opinion re: GHI Providing Loans to GDC (iii)
5. Member Financial Matters o ' (viii)
6. Consider Approval of the Following Contracts: (vi)
e 2022 Contract for Replacing Roofs for Attached and Rental Garages — 1%
reading
¢ Contract for a Technical Writer to Reformat the Member Handbook and
Board Policies — 1* and only reading
7. A Complaint Matter (1v)
8. Request to Defer a Member’s Coop Fees (iv)

During the meeting, the Board authorized the follswing contract:

A contract with M¥. Andrew Penney (a technical writing cossultant) for first and only reading, to
update, standardize, format, and revise the Member Handbook and Board policies for clarity and
consistency, at the consultant’s bid price of $34,100, plus 10% for contingencies, for a total not
to exceed $37,510.

The motion to hold the closed meeting was approved during the open meeting of May 19, 2022,
by Directors Bilyeu, Brodd, Hess, James, Lambert, Luly, McKinley, Mortimer, and Whipple.



Item 6a. Attachment #5

GHI Board of Directors
Special Open Meeting
(Virtual Zoom)
Thursday, April 14, 2022
5:30 pm

Board Members Present: Bilyeu, Brodd, Carter-Woodbridge, Hess, James, Luly, McKinley,
Mortimer

Excused Absences: Lambert

Others in Attendance:

Eldon Ralph, General Manager

Deanna Washington, Director of Member Services

Joe Perry, Director of Finance

Dale Wilding, Audit Committee

Sam Lee, Audit Committee

Dave Benack, Audit Committee

Tom Jones, Nominations and Elections Committee Chair
Bill Jones, 15-D Ridge Road

Molly Lester, 6-M Hillside Road

Barbara Stevens, 46-A Ridge Road

Henry Haslinger, 4-A Ridge Road

Chris Herman, 11-E Southway

Brian Dahlk, Wegner CPAs

1 Approval of Agenda
Motion: To approve the agenda as presented.

Moved: James Seconded: Hess Carried: 6-0

2. For Action or Discussion

Discussion moved forward to Item 2b.

2a.  Presentation of the 2021 Audit Report and Letters Received from the External Auditor —
(Attachments #1a-1c)

After conducting an external audit, Wegner CPAs, LLP (GHI’s external auditor) submitted an
audit report comprised of the following documents:

e Board Communication Letter (attachment #1a)

¢ Management Letter (attachment #1b)



Item 6a. Attachment #5

» Financial Statements with supplementary Information as of December 31, 2021 and
December 31, 2020 (attachment #1¢)

Questions may be directed to Mr. Perry, GHI’s Finance Director, prior to the meeting.

Brian Dahlk from Wegner CPAs presented the audit report during the Board meeting.
Director Carter-Woodbridge left the meeting during the discussion.

Motion: I move that the Board of Directors accept the 2021 audit report from Wegner
CPAs, LLP that includes the Consolidated Financial Statements for Greenbelt Homes, Inc.
as of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020.

Moved: Luly Seconded: Hess Carried: 7-0

Discussion moved forward to Item 2c.

2b. Pronosed Agenda for the May 12. 2022 Annual Membership Meeting — (Attachment #2

Attachment #2 is the proposed agenda for the annual membership meeting on May 12, 2022.
The Board should review the proposed agenda and decide what changes should be made.

Directors Luly and Bilyeu arrived during the discussion.

Motion: I move that the Board of Directors accept the agenda for the annual membership
meeting on May 12, 2022 as revised.

Moved: McKinley Seconded: Bilyen Carried: 8-0
Discussion moved backward to Item 2a.

2¢. Decide Whether Members Attending the Annual Meeting In-person Should Register
Beforehand — {Attachment #3)

Attachment #3 is an email from Tom Jones, Chair of the Nominations and Elections (N&E)
Committee, who is requesting the Board to decide whether members who attend the 2022 hybrid
annual membership in person should be required to register in advance. Mr. Jones suggests that
the Board consider the following two options:

Either:
1. Not require members to register in advance to attend the annual membership meeting
in person, and N&E will not allow anyone to cast a paper ballot that night after the
meeting.

Or:



Item 6a. Attachment #5

2. Require any member attending the annual meeting in person to register in advance,
with a registration deadline 2+ days before the meeting; staff will then ensure all
advance-registered users are sent to GetQuorum (host for the virtual meeting) with
instructions to remove them from the list of members who can vote online. N&E will
allow registered members to cast ballots in person Thursday night — but only those
members — and registered members will be prohibited from casting Board & Audit
committee ballots online.

3.

Director Brood left the meeting during the discussion. Director Luly took over as Chair.

The Board adopted Option #2 by consensus.

Motion: To adjourn.

Moved: Hess Seconded: Bilyeu Carried: 6-0

The meeting adjourned at 6:57 pm.

Ed James
Secretary



Ttem 6b. Attachment #6

GHI Board of Directors
Open Meeting
(Virtual Zoom)
April 21, 2022
Begins after the GDC Open Meeting Adjourns

Board Members Present: Bilyeu, Brodd, Carter-Woodbridge, Hess, James, Lambert, Luly,
McKinley, Mortimer

Excused Absences:

Others in Attendance:

Eldon Ralph, General Manager

Deanna Washington, Director of Member Services
Joe Perry, Director of Finance

Onyel Bhola, Director of Technical Services

Jim Morris, Director of Maintenance

Bruce Mangum, Contract Processor

Talyzia Jenkins, Administrative Assistant, Member Services
Dave Benack, Audit Committee

Dale Wilding, Audit Committee

Sam Lee, Audit Committee

Grace Fisher, 11-C Hillside Road

Stephen Holland, 56-E Ridge Road

Alexander Barnes, 4-F Crescent Road

Molly Lester, 6-M Hillside Road

Claudia Jones, 7-D Laurel Hill Road

Henry Haslinger, 4-A Ridge Road

Bill Jones, 15-D Ridge Road

President Brodd called the meeting to order at 8:07 pm

1. Approval of Agenda
Item 6.d had “April 21” changed to “May 5.
Motion: To approve the agenda, as revised.

Moved: McKinley Seconded: Mortimer Carried: 9-0

2. Statement of Closed Meetings

2a.  Statement of a Closed Meeting Held on March 14, 2022 ¢ Attachment #1}

On March 14, 2022, Board members Stefan Brodd, Erin Bilyeu and Denna Lambert, held a
hearing regarding a member complaint matter. The hearing was conducted in a closed meeting,



[tem 6b. Attachment #6
via internet audio/video conference. Audit Committee member Sam Lee attended the hearing.

The closed meeting was authorized by sub-paragraph § 5-6B-19 (e)(1)(iv} of the Maryland
Cooperative Housing Act.

The motion to hold the hearing was approved by an 7-0 vote of the Board of Directors during a
closed meeting on February 17, 2022.

2b. Statement of a Closed Meeting Held on April 21. 2022 { Attachment #2}

GHI’s Board of Directors held a closed meeting at 7:00 PM on April 21, 2022, via internet
audio/video conference to discuss the following matters, as specified in the noted sub-paragraphs
of the Maryland Cooperative Housing Corporation Act § 5-6B-19 (¢) (1):

1. Approve Minutes of the Closed Meeting held on March 3, 2022. T i) |

i 2. Consider Approval the Following Contracts: (vi)

e Cost Increase Requested by Contractor for 2022 Landscape Maintenance
Contract — 2™ reading

e 2022 Contract for Spring Concrete Repairs — 2™ reading

e 2022 Contract for Gutter Cleaning — 1% reading

e 2022 Contract for Telephone Services for the GHI Administration Building
— 1% reading

e Contracts for Repairs of Two Units Assigned to GHI — 1* reading

5. Member Financial Matters. b (viii)
o6 Member Complaint Matters. [ (iv)
7. Item of Information: Rental Permit Granted to a Member (iv) _‘:

During the meeting, the Board authorized the following:

» An amendment to a current 3-year contract with Brightview Landscapes LLC, whereby
GHI would pay the contractor an additional $14,739 for landscape maintenance of GHI’s
common areas resulting in a cost of $82,013 during 2022, plus an allowance of 5% for
contingencies that may arise, for a total cost not exceeding $86,114.

» A contract with Lanham Construction Company for the repairs of concrete sidewalks at
eighteen (18) sites during the spring of 2022, at the contractor’s bid of $26,914, plus an
allowance of 10% for contingencies, for a total not to exceed $29,605.40.

The motion to hold the closed meeting was approved during the open meeting of April 7, 2022,
by Directors Brodd, Carter-Woodbridge, Hess, James, Luly, McKinley, and Mortimer.

3 Visitors and Members { Comment Period)

Molly Lester, 6-M Hillside, inquired of the process for Point of Order during the Annual
Meeting since the forum is a hybrid format. She also asked for clarification on members having
an opportunity to ask questions about reports during the meeting. President Brodd advised he
would obtain information from Get Quorum to ensure a Point of Order is created and in place for



Item 6b. Attachment #6

the meeting. President Brodd advised Molly there would be opportunity for members to ask
questions at specific segments of the meeting.

Claudia Jones, 7-D Laure} Hill Road, expressed frustration that she was unable to access the
worksession held with GHI’s attorney and that no one notified her of an issue with the link or
provided an alternate means for her to access the worksession. She requested a measure be
implemented to provide assistance if members are having difficulties accessing virtual meetings.
General Manager Ralph apologized to Claudia for the issues with the virtual worksession and
advised staff is working on minimizing issues with virtual meetings. GM Ralph advised Claudia
he would meet with her to review the items discussed during the worksession to provide her the
information as communicated by the attorney.

Claudia also expressed concerns about the March 2022 minutes not being posted on the website;
however, President Brodd advised this was due to the minutes not having been approved for any

March meetings yet.

4. Approval of Membership Applications

Motion: I move that the Board of Directors approve the following persons into the
Cooperative and membership be afforded them at the time of settlement;

Lisa Milani, Sole Owner, 58-K Crescent Road;

Betsey L. Coakley, Sole Owner, 60-H Crescent Road;

Carly L. Gayle, Debra L. Kaiser, Joint Owners, 20-S Hillside Road;

Julia C. Watson, Sole Owner, 4-1. Laurel Hill Road;

Christopher T. Corson, Sole Owner, 4-H Ridge Road;

Sheldon W. Spencer, Sole Owner, 16-Z1 Ridge Road;

James M. McCormack, Julia E. Griffin, Tenants by the Entirety, 45-D Ridge Road;
Deborah A. Honecker, Sole Owner, 69-K Ridge Road;

Rousseau A. Nutter, Chloe M. Emler, Tenants by the Entirety, 71-B Ridge Road.

Moved: James Seconded: Hess Carmed: 9-0

5. Committee Reports

Director Bilyeu reported that the Member Handbook and Board Policy Manual Standardization
Task Force met for their first meeting the prior night and were successful in creating and
approving a Charter and have established a series of potential dates to extend to the individual
they wish to hire as a technical resource as well as questions for that interview.

Director Carter-Woodbridge reported that the Woodlands Committee will be holding a Plant
Swap on April 30, 2022 beginning at 11 am. The committee recommends early arrival since the
last few years have seen high member turnout.

6. For Action or Discussion

6a.  Approve Minutes of the Open Meetinu Held on March 3, 2022 — {Attachment #3)




Item 6b. Attachment #6

Motion: I move that the Board of Directors approve the minutes of the Open Meeting held
on March 3, 2022 as presented.

Moved: James Seconded: Hess Carried: 9-0

6b.  Request from the GDC Board of Directors to Assign Tasks to the Buildings Committee

During its open meeting on April 21, 2022, GDC’s Board of Directors will consider the
following two motions:

Motion #1: I move that the Board of Directors request the GHI Board of Directors to direct
GHI’s Buildings Committee to recommend the most appropriate piping repair and/or
replacement options for water supply, wastewater, and heating piping infrastructure for GDC’s
Parkway Apartment Buildings and whether or not this work should be done at the same time as
the pipe replacement program in GHI’s masonry and frame units.

Motion #2: I move that the Board of Directors request the GHI Board of Directors to direct
GHI’s Finance Committee to recommend whether or not GDC should purchase insurance
separately from GHI and state the pros and cons for the committee’s recommendation.

If the GDC Board approves the two motions, the GHI Board of Directors should consider
assigning the tasks to the two committees as requested.

This item is on the agenda for discussion and action.

Motion #1: I move that the Board of Directors direct the Buildings Committee to
recommend the most appropriate piping repair and/or replacement options for water
supply, wastewater, and heating piping infrastructure for GDC’s Parkway Apartment
Buildings and whether or not this work should be done at the same time as the pipe
replacement program in GHI’s masonry and frame units.

Moved: Hess Seconded: Bilyeu Carried: 9-0

Motion #2: I move that the Board of Directors direct GHI’s Finance Committee to
recommend whether or not GDC should purchase insurance separately from GHI and
state the pros and cons for the committee’s recommendation. The Finance committee shall
complete its assignment by September 30, 2022.

Moved: Luly Seconded: Hess Carried: 9-0

6¢. Review 2021 Year-end Financial Statements — (Attachment #4)

GHI’s 2021 year-end financial statements are included as attachment #4 for your review. Joe
Perry, GHI’s Finance Director, presented them and answered questions.

6d. Motion to Hold a Closed Meeting on Max 3. 2022




Item 6b. Attachment #6

Motion: I move to hold a closed meeting of the Board of Directors at 7:00 pm on May 5,
2022,

Moved: Hess Seconded: McKinley Carried: 9-0

7. Items of Information

7a.  President’s Items

President Brodd reminded members of the Town Hall on April 24, 2022 and encouraged
everyone to attend. He also reminded members of GM Ralph’s Annual Performance Evaluation
scheduled for April 28, 2022, the Candidates Forum scheduled for May 3, 2022, and the Annual
Meeting on May 12, 2022.

7b. Board Members’ Jtems

Director McKinley inquired about the link for attending the Performance Evaluation for GM
Ralph. GM Ralph advised the link would be distributed the following day.

Director McKinley also inquired of the platform for the Candidates Forum. President Brodd
advised his last awareness was that the forum would be held virtually via Zoom.

Tc. Audit Committee’s ltems
7d.  Manager’s Items

GM Ralph advised members that staff would hold two upcoming demonstrations for the Yardi
Portal to help understand and navigate the new portal.

Motion: To adjourn.

Moved: Hess Seconded: Bilyeu Carried: 9-0

The meeting adjourned at 8:47 pm.

Ed James
Secretary



Ttem 6c. Attachment #7a

XIll. Swimming Pools and Ornamental
Ponds

A. MINOR POOLS AND PONDS

1. Pools less than twenty-three (23) inches deep and less than twelve (12)
feet in diameter may be purchased and used without Corporation
approval.

2. Ornamental ponds less than twenty-three (23) inches deep and less than
twelve (12) feet in diameter may be dug in the yard provided they do not
interfere with the yard swale or drainage. Care must be taken to keep
these ponds clean so they do not become areas for mosquito breeding.

B. MAJOR POOLS
Any pool, including outdoor hot tubs or spas, over twenty-three (23) inches deep
or twelve (12) feet in diametér will require approval. Maximum depth will be thirty-
six (36) inches. Swimming pools are required to have approval by the Board of
Directors; ponds, hot tubs, or spas may be approved by staff.
Regulations governing 23" to 36" depth and over 12 foot diameter pools (prior
approval must be obtained from Management).

1. No pool can be installed which interferes with natural drainage.

2. Swimming pools must be enclosed by protective fences around the pool or
around the yard where the pool is located. Hot tubs or spas must be
protected with a safety cover in compliance with the local building code;
use of a barrier fence for hot tubs or spas requires specific approval by the
Board of Directors.

3. Liability insurance protection must be provided and evidence of such
coverage must be provided to Management before installation of the pool.
This insurance must remain in force during the life of the pool.

4. A pool cover must be installed at all imes when the pool is not occupied.

5. Provision must be made for use of a filter to conserve water.



Item 6¢. Attachment #7b

DRAFT REVISION OF GHI HANDBOOK — ARTICLE Xt

XIII. POOLS AND OUTDOOR RECREATION EQUIPMENT

A. SMALL POOLS AND ORNAMENTAL PONDS

1. Pools less than twenty-three (23) inches deep and less than twelve (12) feet in diameter may
be purchased and used without Corporation approval, but must be properly maintained in safe,
clean and sanitary condition and must not become areas for mosquito breeding. -

2. Ornamental ponds less than twenty-three (23) inches deep and less than twelve (12]) feetin
diameter may be dug in the yard provided they do not interfere with the yard swale or drainage.
These ponds must be properly maintained in safe, clean and sanitary condition and must not
become areas for mosquito breeding.

B. LARGE POOLS AND ORNAMENTAL PONDS

1. All pools, including but not limited to ornamental ponds, outdoor hot tubs and spas, over
twenty-three (23) inches deep or over twelve (12} feet in diameter must receive prior GHI
approval. The maximum depth of any such pool, tub or spa shall not exceed thirty-six (36) inches.
Installation of swimming pools must be approved in advance by the Board of Directors. Installation
of ponds, hot tubs, or spas may be approved by GHI staff.

2. No installation will be permitted if it will interfere with natural drainage. All pools, ponds,
hot tubs and spas must be maintained in safe, clean and sanitary condition and must not become
areas for mosquito breeding.

3. Every swimming pool must be enclosed by a fence not less than 72 inches high, with a
locked gate, and approved by the Board of Directors. Installation of a barrier fence around a hot
tub or spa also requires prior approval by the Board of Directors.

4, A pool cover must be installed at all times when the pool is not occupied. Hot tubs or spas
must be protected with safety covers in compliance with the local code. The safety cover must be in
place whenever a hot tub or spa is not occupied.

5. Water must be recirculated and filtered. Pool chemicals must be stored in a locked
enclosure.

C. RECREATION EQUIPMENT

1 Trampolines must be approved in advance by GHI staff. Every trampoline must be installed
in accordance with the manufacturer’s instructions, must be enclosed by a safety net at all times
and must be properly maintained in safe condition. When a trampoline is not in use, the safety net
must be locked and any steps or ladders to access the trampoline must be removed.

2. All recreation equipment, including but not limited to swing sets, slides, climbing equipment,
playhouses and other play structures, must be installed in accordance with the manufacturer’s
instructions and must be properly maintained in safe condition.



Item 6¢. Attachment #7b

3. Every yard in which recreation equipment is installed must be enclosed by a fence not less
than 42 inches high, with a locked gate, and approved by the Board of Directors.

D. MEMBERS’ OBLIGATIONS

1. Members are responsible for ensuring that their pools, including but not limited to
ornamental ponds, outdoor hot tubs and spas, their recreation equipment, and all required fences,
are installed, used and maintained in safe condition and in full compliance with all applicable laws

and regulations.

2. As a condition of GHI approval, each Member who wishes to install a pool or recreation
equipment must sign a Recreation Structure Indemnification Agreement, in a form prescribed by

GHI, protecting GHI from all liability.

3. As a condition of GHI approval, each Member who wishes to install a pool or recreation
equipment must obtain and at all times maintain liability insurance providing coverage for any
injury or damage arising in connection with use of the pool or recreation equipment, with minimum
coverage limits of $__500,000, and must provide documentation of such insurance coverage

annually to GHI.



Item 6¢. Attachment 7c

RECREATION STRUCTURE INDEMNIFICATION AGREEMENT

This Agreement is entered into as of , 20 , by and between

(“Member”), whose address is

, and Greenbelt Homes, Inc. (“GHI"), the address of

which is 1 Hamilton.Place, Greenbelt, Maryland 20770.

Recitals

The Member is the occupant of a dwelling unit and certain exterior areas (“Yard”) located
at . The dwelling unit and
the Yard comprise the “Premises,” pursuant to the Member’s Cooperative Housing
Proprietary Lease and Mutual Ownership Contract with GHI, dated
("MOC").

GHI is the owner of the Premises and has authority to regulate the use of the Premises and
to grant or withhold permission for any installations to be made on the Premises, including
but not limited to any installations of pools, water features, hot tubs, spas, trampolines or
play structures.

The Member wishes to install the items described and shown on Exhibit A to this
Agreement (“Recreation Structure”) in the Yard.

The Member has been fully advised of the risks of injury or death associated with use of
the proposed Recreation Structure and is willing to assume such risks and to hold GHI
harmless from any claims arising in connection with the Recreation Structure.

GHI is willing to permit installation of the Recreation Structure, subject to the terms and
conditions of this Agreement, and the Member is willing to agree to and abide by the terms
and conditions of this Agreement. '

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants herein, and other
good and valuable consideration, the parties agree as follows.

1.

GHI hereby grants permission, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement and
subject to the MOC and governing legal documents of GHI, for the installation of the
Recreation Structure in the Yard, for the term of this Agreement.

The Member shall maintain the Yard, shall maintain a secure fence surrounding the Yard,
and shall maintain the Recreation Structure, in good and safe order, condition and repair
and shall perform all necessary maintenance and repairs. If the Member fails to perform
such maintenance or repairs, GHI, in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other rights and
remedies available to GHI, shall have the right, after 10 days written notice to the Member,
to terminate this Agreement and remove the Recreation Structure from the Yard, and the
Member shall reimburse GHI for all of its costs in connection with such work, within 10
days after written demand for payment is sent by GHI to the Member.



Item 6¢. Attachment 7¢

GHI and its authorized agents and contractors shall have a right of entry upon the Yard at
any time, without prior notice, for the purposes of performing inspections and performing
any work permitted by this Agreement or by the MOC and governing legal documents of
GHI. The Member shall not obstruct or hinder GHI in the exercise of this right or in the
performance of any inspections or work permitted by this Agreement.

The Member shall indemnify and hold harmless GHI and its members, directors, officers,
committee members, employees and agents, and their respective successors and assigns,
from and against any and all claims, damages, injuries, suits, proceedings, actions or
causes of action of any kind, including without limitation property damage, personal
injury or death, along with all costs and attorney’s fees, which may arise in connection
with use of the Recreation Structure or the presence of the Recreation Structure in the Yard.
This provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.

The Member shall at all times maintain an adequate liability insurance policy covering
claims for property damage, injuries or death resulting from use of the Recreation
Structure or the presence of the Recreation Structure in the Yard. GHI and its members,
directors, officers, committee members, employees and agents, and their respective
successors and assigns, shall be designated as additional insured parties under such
insurance policy. A Certificate of Insurance documenting such required coverage is
attached hereto as Exhibit B. The Member shall provide GHI with a Certificate of Insurance
annually on or before the anniversary date of this Agreement, documenting that such
insurance coverage remains in effect.

At such time as the Member ceases to be a member of GHI or ceases to reside at the
Premises, this Agreement shall terminate automatically and the Member shall immediately
remove the Recreation Structure from the Premises unless otherwise notified by GHIL
Permission given by GHI to the Member under this Agreement for installation of the
Recreation Structure is given personally to the Member, and shall automatically be
withdrawn upon termination of this Agreement, and such permission shall not be
assigned, and shall not transfer or convey, to any other person, including without
limitation any tenant, any other member of GHI, any future occupant of the Premises, or
any of the Member’s heirs, successors or assigns.

If the Member fails to comply with any provision of this Agreement, or with the MOC or
governing legal documents of GHI, or if GHI in its sole discretion determines that the
presence of the Recreation Structure is not in the best interest of GHI or its members, GHI
shall have the right to terminate this Agreement and the rights granted to the Member
hereby upon 10 days’ written notice to the Member.

Upon termination of this Agreement, the Member shall immediately remove the
Recreation Structure from the Premises and shall not thereafter install any Recreation
Structure on the Premises. If the Member fails to remove the Recreation Structure as
required within 10 days after notice from GHI, GHI shall have the right to remove the
Recreation Structure from the Yard, and the Member shall reimburse GHI for all costs
incurred, within 10 days after written demand for payment is sent by GHI to the Member.

2



10.

11.

Item 6¢. Attachment 7c

The exercise by GHI of the right to terminate this Agreement shall not, however, constitute
an election of remedies, and GHI shall have the right to take any other action available at
law or in equity to enforce this Agreement or to enforce any other rights that GHI may
have under the MOC, under the governing legal documents of GHI, or under applicable
law. Any failure or forbearance by GHI to enforce this Agreement or any to exercise any
other rights available to it shall not constitute a waiver of any right of GHI to enforce this
Agreement or to exercise such other rights on any other occasion.

Notices required or permitted by this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be hand-
delivered or mailed by first class mail postage prepaid, or sent by Federal Express or other
nationally recognized overnight delivery service, or sent via electronic mail with
confirmation of delivery, to the parties at the addresses set forth above, or to such other
address as any party may designate by written notice from time to time. Notices sent by
hand or electronic mail shall be deemed received upon actual receipt or upon refusal of
receipt on the first occasion on which delivery is attempted. Notices sent by first class mail
shall be deemed received four days after deposit in the U.S. Mail. Notices sent for overnight
delivery by Federal Express or other nationally recognized overnight delivery service shall
be deemed received 1 business day after delivery to such nationally recognized delivery
service.

This Agreement cannot be modified except by written amendment of this Agreement,
signed by the parties. This Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the parties and
their successors and assigns.

This Agreement shall be enforced and construed under the laws of Maryland without
regard to conflict of laws principles. Venue for any legal action in connection with this
Agreement shall be in Prince George’s County, Maryland.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have signed this Agreement as of the date first set forth

above.

GREENBELT HOMES, INC.

By:

= By:
President Secretary

MEMBER




Item 6¢. Attachment 7¢

EXHIBIT A

DESCRIPTION, SPECIFICATIONS, PROPOSED LOCATION
AND IMAGE OF PROPOSED RECREATION STRUCTURE

[ATTACHED]



Item 6¢. Attachment 7¢
EXHIBIT B

MEMBER’S CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE

[ATTACHED]



Item 6d. Attachment #8a

GHI IMPERVIOUS SURFACE RULES

A. PURPOSE

1. Part of GHI's mission is to maintain, protect and enhance the assets of

our cooperative. One of these assets is gréen space, including swales.
GHI encourages Members to keep their yards in their natural condition as
much as possible. This is consistent with the original design of Greenbelt
as a garden city. Swales are part of the original design of GHI and are a
natural way to control runoff and promote drainage.

2. The impervious surface rules herein are intended to help maintain the

benefits of natural landscaping by limiting the amount et impervious
surface in GHI yards and requiring use of permeable materials. These
rules are intended to address increased stormwater runoff, reduce or
prevent flooding in-GHY, and reduce negative effects on area streams.
Limiting the amount of impervious surface area in GHI also helps Prince
Georges County meet its requirement to reduce pollution and flooding
caused by rainfail.

B. RULES

1. Any new exterior surface structures (meaning those partially or totally outside of
the Member's unit's indoor fiveable space} such as decks, patios, and walkways
other than the access sidewalks, must be censtructed using pervious materials.

a.

b.
c.

d.

Exterior surface structures may not be constructed with impervious
materials such as concrete, asphalt, or non-porous composite or
conglomerate materials.

Use of porous asphalt in GHI yards is not allowed.

Exterior elevated structures, such as decks and porches, may contain
concrete pylons in their design.

Multiple aliowable pervious materials are described in Section F below.

2. Pervious surfaces such as patios and decks may cover a single contiguous area
up to a maximum area of 250 sq ft or 20% of the gross yard area, whichever
value is smaller, or multiple distinct areas totaling no more than 250 sq ft. or 20%
of the gross yard area, whichever value is smaller.

3. As stated in Sections 1ll.B.11 and IV.E of this Handbook, existing swales shall not
be blocked by any structure or altered in any way by a Member that would
compromise the functioning of the swale.



4,

O

o

Ttem 6d. Attachment #8a

As stated in Section X.I of this Handbook, structures may not be built over buried
utilities. Permission to build a structure is contingent on the determination that no
buried utilities are located where the new structure is to be built.

Wheelchair ramps and other means of accessibility for disabled individuals are
addressed separately from these rules in GHFs the Reasonable Accommodation
Policy.

Walkways maintained and/or replaced by GHI do not count against the total
maximum allowable sguare footage noted in this rule.

BACKGROUND

. The amount of existing impervious sutfaces in and arournid GHI increases the

impact and frequency of flooding evants, including damage to GHI member
homes and erosion of paths and common areas.

Installing new impervious surfaces reduces the area of land avaitable for
rainwater to soak into the ground as well as reducing the area of land that can
support trees, woody plants, shrubs, grasses or other types of vegetation (e.g.,
gardens). Trees and other vegetation help reduce the amount of stormwater
runoff by trapping silt and sediment, stabilizing areas susceptible to erosion,
increasing infiltration, and reducing surface munoff. By contrast, impervious
surfaces increase the speed and amount of stormwater runoff and, therefore,
increase erosion. Additional runoff frem impervious surfaces can overioad the
capacity of streams and storm drains. This runoff also picks up and carries
pofiutants into storm drains that flow into GHI streams Greenbelt Lake, and
ultimately into the Anacostia River and Chesapeake Bay, degrading the water

quality in these waterways.

DEFINITIONS

. Impervious surface: a hard surface area that prevents or substantially impedes

the natural infiltration of water into the underlying soil, resulting in an increased
volume and velocity of surface water runoff. Impervious surfaces include, but are
not limited to, buildings; patios, decks, sidewalks, driveways, pavement, parking
areas, and driveways constructed of concrete or asphalt; artificial turf, compacted
gravel, and hard-surfaced recreational areas (e.g., tennis courts).

Pervious surface: a surface that allows water to percolate into the underlying
soil. Pervious surfaces include grass, muich, planted areas, vegetated roofs,
permeable paving, and porches and decks erected on pier foundations that



Item 6d. Attachment #8a

maintain the covered surface’s water permeability {coz.dc.gov/zoning-
rules/general-rules/pervious-surfaces/)

. Swales. Swales are depressed channels designed to move stormwater while
slowing down stormwater runoff and removing pollutants.

. Compacted cover - An area of land where water percolation is reduced by
increased compaction of the soil as compared to undisturbed areas (e.g., forest,
meadow). Soil compaction occurs from grading, regular foot or vehicle traffic, or
regular pet use (e.g., a dog run).

. Erosion - The process by which soil, mulch, tc. is worn away by the action of
water.

. Runoff - That portion of rain and/or snow melt that traveis over the land surface,
rooftops, sidewalks, roads, patios, ete.

_ Stormwater — The flow of water that results from rain and/or snow melt runoff,
street runoff, and land surface (e.g., yards, common areas) runoff and drainage.

. Structure For the purposes of thls rule, a shucture means an object such asa

rocks or mulch (see Sectlon F below)

. Allowable Permeable Materials

. Allowable surface and efevated structuré materials consist of permeable pavers,
bricks with sand filler, permeable pavement, tamped gravel, and wooden boards.

. Light calored permeable materials are preferred to increase the reflection
of sunlight and reduce the heat island effect.

. Permeable Pavers

a. Permeabte pavers are a self-draining system that allows rainwater to seep
around individual pavers, soaking naturally into the subbase and ground
underneath as indicated in the figure below.



Item 6d. Attachment #8a

n - rl"
L . d
e ’1'-"'.’:‘-';‘" .

b. Permeable pavers can create a longer-lasting surface compared with
conventional concrete and can reduce flooding on your property or the
surrounding area.

c. Permeable pavers and re-vegetation:

a. Reduce flooding and erosion caused by stormwater runoft
b. Promote groundwater recharge, increasing both the quantity and

quatdity of water

. Bricks with Sand

a. Like permeable pavers, bricks with sand allow rainwater to seep around the
bricks and can reduce flooding and erosion caused by stormwater runoff.
b. Water flow in brick and sand systems is like that shown above for permeable

paver systems.

. Pervious Concrete
a. Pervious concrete allows water to filter through the pavement structure

into underlying layers and eventually to the soil.
b. Water flows through the pervious concrete system as shown in the figure

below.



Ttem 6d. Attachment #8a

C. Permeablc-; concrete does “require some maintenance to retain its
permeability.
6. Wooden, Composite, or Recycled Plastic Boards

a. Boards used for decking and porgh flooring typically have spaces between
them, allowing water to flow between the boards to the underlying soil.

b. Composite boards are made frem a mix of wood particles and durable
synthetic materials and come in many colors.

c. Recycled plastic boards mimic wood using recycled plastic and come in
many colors,

F. Landscaping Rocks -

1. Although landscaping rocks are not considered a structure for the purposes of
this rule, the use of light-colored materials is preferred to reduce the heat island

effect.

2. Landscaping rocks ¢onsist of pea gravel, gravel, crushed stone, river rocks and
decomposed granite. Due to their shapes, landscaping rocks allow water to filter
down into the underlying soil.

G. Rain Check Rebate Program



Item 6d. Attachment #R8a

1. The Rain Check Rebate Program allows GHI Members to receive rebates for
installing ‘Rain Check’ approved practices that reduce stormwater runoff quantity.
These practices include permeable pavers, permeable pavement, pavement
removal, and tree canopy.

2. Members are encouraged to take advantage of this program as long as it is
available to defray costs and decrease stormwater runoff.

3. More information on the Program can be found at
https:/cbtrust.org/grants/prince-georges-county-rain-check-rebate/.



Item 6d. Attachment #8b

NEW SECTION XK. RUNOFF CAPTURE AND CONTROL
REQUIREMENTS

. The purpose of these offset requirements is to reduce flooding in GHI, reduce
negative effects on the Cooperative’s streams, build resiliency, and maintain a
desirable quality of life within the Cooperative.

a. Additional development increases the speed and amount of stormwater runoff
and, therefore, increases erosion. The additional runoff can overioad the
capacity of streams and storm drains.

b. Additions, patios, decks, sheds, etc. are impervious and prevent or
substantially impede the natural infiltrafion of water into the underlying soil.

. Several measures are available to Members to capture and/or control any
increased runoff resulting from the construction of an exterior alteration,
improvement, or addition. These measures are described in more detail below.

. Any dimensions included in the example measures presented below are for
illustration purposes only and are not pre-apprgved design dimensions. Each
measure proposed for construction must be designed specifically for the
Member’s yard.

. The construction of any of the capture andfor control measures described in
Sections 6-8 below shall require a Type i permit.

. If the construction of any of the capture and/or control measures described in
Sections 6-8 below are proposed as pait of a proposed exterior alteration,
improvement, or addition, the permit application for these measures shall be
included as part of the permit application for the proposed exterior alteration,
improvement, or addition as described in Section X.C of this Handbook.

. Raingardens

a. Raingardens capture and retain runoff and allow the runoff water to
infiltrate into the ground.

b. Raingardens are planted with water-tolerant plants because the
raingarden will remain wet until the runoff water has completely infiltrated
into the ground.

c¢. Raingardens should be constructed at least five feet away from the
foundation of the unit.

d. Examples of raingardens are shown in Figure 1 below. Design information
can be found on the PG County Rain Check website
https://cbtrust.org/grants/prince-georges-county-rain-check-rebate/.



Item 6d. Attachment #8b

INFLOW
STRUCTURE

NATIVE PLANTS

e : J ‘ , ” PONDING
. { e pisrttie R a B " MULCH
L, R PR
S ‘;GASDE N SOl 1.5° DETENTION
R TN FILTRATION
ZONE
UNDERDRAIN GRaveL BED 1 RETENTION
‘RECHARGE
ZONE
RAIN GARDEN SECTION
LAN! WALKER

Figure 1. Typical Raingarden Cross-8ettion

7. Dry Wells:

a. Dry wells capture and retain roof runoff to allow the runoff water to
infiltrate into the ground.

b. Dry wells. should be constructed at least 10 to 12 feet away from the
foundation of the unit.

¢. Examples of dry wefls are shown in Figure 2 below.



Item 6d. Attachment #8b

Guatter

Downspout

PV Drainpipe

1% Fiall Dise

=

Figure 2. Typi'cal Dry Well Cross-Section

8. Rainbarrels

a. Rainbarrels and cisterns are another means of capturing runoff to store for
later use.

b. This fater use should be as part of a slow, measured outflow to minimize
any negative effects of releasing the water.

¢. Requirements for rainbarrels and cisterns are contained in Section XXII! of
this Handbook.



Ttem 6d. Attachment #8¢

| INOQE JUBWNIOP PUOIAS B JO pud Ay} je
. paoeyd 13313q 3g JYSHit JUBWNI0P 0BUNS

‘ydnoy; e 3snf "aumde) 30 uny

snolnadw| 3y u) weadosd aleqay Wy S|eIIRIRI 3|(RMO|jY "I SB|NY A SuoRiuLAQ ) punoidyoeq ‘g asoding
uley "D Pajjed UoNISS Y1 J1 JSpUOM _ "y 03 paBueyp 3 JyBju SUOLIBS 341 4O JBPIO AL sdeysad :a0eung snojaduw) | )
oI SO M, ¥, ety o . el b it o A oS T, ;

Suiaq s1 1eym aquasap Ajaieandae 03 shemyjem, 03, Siiemapis, asueyd
mmmm_n 1 sasmﬁma f UoIIAS Ul ‘sajny acepng m:o_?_mac.._ 1HD 3y} Buipae8ay

ST “Juawidfeuewu 12)eMLLIOIS J0) pasn aQ u_:ou
Spunj v4yv Y3 Jo Lied puelsiapun §-1eul yitm diay pjnod 11aquaaso jo Ay ¢
ayy sdeysad *1doy sy3 uo YSNoY) e 1snf “3jqeauniad apew ‘JHO Ul S|eMapIs |
ay} Jo aJow aas 0} Jeals aq pjnom }| asnesag ‘}pald 18yl 40§ Ayjenb ued .
os|e 1y8 JI SujJapuom Wi, puy "SaJens snotasad 0] sadeuns snoiasadun Suiuing l .

404 S3P342 138 UeD ‘Burlyy APIMBYEIS € S31 UL | ‘SIUMOBLLOY ey} PUE)SIBPUN |

(v wowyoessy [N =2) . . .

¢ pappe a.Je sedepns snopuad

3yl yarym ui paeA ayy 03 Ajuo 1o ‘{(apisadiuas+apisusples) ease pied je1o) m
5,3W0Y 3yl 0} J3J2J B3Je pJeA S5048, DY) S20( """ II(|BLUS S| BNJEA JBAIYIUM |
‘ease paeh 5018 3yl JO %07 J0 Y bs 057 Jo eale winwixew e 0} dn edse
sNongiuod 3BuIs e 43A00 Aeuwl $Y0ap pue sojed se Yons SAVBLINS SNOIAIBd,, ‘sAes
T'8 3jny ",S3|NY degng mso_amaE_ IHD,, pasodoud ay) noqe uolisanb e dAey |
T U00s AJaA asuadxa

1ea.8 asnes jim Ing ‘mou Suipuads ajgeiou am3esadood 3y} 1S0D YIIYM ‘sanss) |
POO} JURISUOI-JR3U JUALD 0} SIIBHNS SNoIAIadWI JO JUNOWE Y)Y JAA0 Apealje |
aJe 3, 'saaeuns snoltadwy SuipaeSal sapna pasodoud ayy JO JoAey Ul WE | |

rre

{1 Ewssumtql mm&

&:wEw._s_umx _o.:cou ucm
3inyde) JJo-uUny uo SINY 31 SJUBWWIOY) .

, aweN :
sadejng m:o_?_wnE_ ‘34 $3|NY INOQE SHUBWWIOD (SSBUPPY ; IBQUIBIA |

SJUSWISTIN B3y [0J3UGY) pue ainyded JJo-uny 'Se0BJINS SNOIAIS W] U0 S3|NY Pasodold 10§ SUSWIWOY) 19qUIBIA]



Item 6d. Attachment #8c¢

(s Emssgqlem& , | R Ems__u§<lwma

f__g,_élé | — . ll

e oo B e B T N o

UoRnd.osqe Jajem Jo}
suapieB-ume| pajitulj-193em WO0LS J3UIP
-10} BUOP 2ABY | JByM 335 MI| PINOM ;
JJe1s JI"puejsiapun L,uop | ‘pamoj|e W

S1 51y} MOH jpes "pieA apisuapaesd Aull
AON 3y1 01 sued yse|ds 3wos 03 payIBAP |
SEeM JaJeM WIS Ay} 'PaJINIISUOD seMm M
uojppe AJo3s-z UE ‘pooysoqysiau Jno

U} JUN o1 B ‘S1eaA JUBI3J UYIIM INS
Jo} ‘poo8 |je (s{lom Asp ‘suapaed

uieJ) Yesp siyy uj dpew suoksadans

BY1 ¢ WIISAS JaJeMm WIO]S punosdiapun
JeuwiSLIo 3yl SS203e 0} 3pell Jo1em

wu0)s Inodsumop ay) 3,us; Aym ‘pasodasd

Su1aq s131UN B 0} UOHPPE Ue UBUM

" SpJEpUE]LS JO Y00, {HO 0} UolIppe

Papaau y "puelsiapun ues fje Jey Jauuew e uy UBLLM ! ‘payoseasal >__Ezm=o_._ _,
i e ey

8y} usam1aq sded ale a1ay} I pamojje $1 S|eialew ajisodwod snolasadwl

Yaim {09p Pa1eA3|a Ue Jeu) S3INI 3Y3 Ul Jedpd 310w SpEW 3q PINOYS 3 Iy |

SJuaWalIinbay [0J3U0) pue ainide) JJo-Uny 'sadejing SNOIAISd W] UO S3[NY Pasodold Joj sjuatilio) 13q wid



Item 6d. Attachment #8¢

Hi,

Here are some comments on the proposed new rules for impervious surfaces and capturing run-off
water,

Overview
All in all these are good rules. Most of my comments are minor and serve to clarify some issues. | do not
see any significant problems with the proposed new rules.

Draft New Rule -Impervious Surfaces.pdf

- There are various grammar and style errors, but let’s not worry about those. Also, some parts read like
they have been cut and pasted from other documents.

- Many of the swales in GHI yards are non-functioning. Should GHI make a systematiceffort to identify
these and fix them?

- Section E.2 of the Draft New Rules says that light-colourad permeable materials are preferred. This is
reasonable, butthe othersurfaces, structures, plants, and whatnot in the yard should be considered
when selecting the material’s colour. There are may be situations where adark-coloured permeable
material is more appropriate. Ditto in Section F.1.

Draft New Rule Section XK. Runoff Capture and Control Requirements.pdf

- The proposed rules need to be edited forgrammar and consistency with the rest of the Member
Handbook.

XK.1

- Remove “quality of life” from the purpose statement. Itis vague concept and too opento subjective
interpretation.

- Patios and decks are not necessarilyimpervious. They should be removed fromthe list in 1.b or the
wording should be changed to make it clear that not all decks and patios are problematic.

XK.2

- This Section is superfluous.

XK.4

- Change “construction” to “construction or installation of” in the first sentence. Itis unlikely that any
memberis going to construct their own rain barrel,

XK.5

- Change “construction” to “construction or installation of” in the first sentence.

XK.6

- Change 6.c to make it clear that rain gardens should be at least five feetaways from any foundation,
not justthe foundation of the member's unit.

XK.7

- Change 7.b to make it clear that dry wells should be at least 10°'~12" from any foundation.



_ Item 6d. Attachment #8c¢
Attachment 2

Good morning;

Please consider my comments and questions regarding proposed rules re: impervious surfaces and
runoff capture and control requirements. Thank you to the Board, Committee Members and and the
Stormwater Sub-Committee for their work addressing this important issue.

1. Question/ comment about the Rain Garden at 20 Court Ridge

Are trees supposed to be growing in the rain garden? i suspect that during the pandemic the
maintenance on the garden was paused. As a result, there are volunteer trees springing up throughout. |
suggest that regardless of future events this and other drainage controls within the community should
receive priority maintenance. It would be a terrible shame to lose the benefit and bragging rights of this
rain garden project and worse if the funders stop supporting future similar projects at GHl due to
neglect, if that's the case.

2. Comment re: language in draft GHI impervious surface "Rules”

By stating this as a suggestion (quote below from first paragraph) it presents the rule as being optional
and could be interpreted as not having a rule at all: "GHi encourages Members to keep their yards in
their natural condition as much as possible.” Can this be re-worded in a way to convey the expectation?

3. Neither proposal addresses the existing drainage problems within the communtiy. Without a plan or
rules to address these, we will continue to experience the negative effects of poor drainage and the
associated future repair costs.

Several issues which are easily remedied with maintenance by members and staff, come to mind, If
these aren't being addressed with the spring inspections and by management, i believe the subject
deserves serious consideration. I've attached some photos to support my observations:

a. | observed that GHI did not perform a fall leaf removal last year. This may have been due to the staff
shortages from the pandemic or intentional. There's a narrative circulating that leaves should not be
removed but left to provide natural muich and protect pollinators. Unfortunately this is only partially
true. If leaves are ‘mulched’ by mowing over and crushing them and there aren't too many then yes,
they cain. However, what has happened here is that there are too many leaves. And they often don't
stay in place but blow out of the common areas into yards and along fences, damming up (interior)
sidewalks. This prevents natural drainage and is a hazard and a liability when freezing occurs in winter,
obscuring the walkways and often making them impassable. | am suggesting that fall leaf removal is
essential.



Item 6d. Attachment #8¢

b. Although members are expected to maintain the perimeters of their yards even if they fail cutside the
fence line (by 12 inches?) when there is an adjacent sidewalk, this is not being done in some cases or
enforced. There are {interior) walkways within the community that are covered by a third or more with
overgrown plantings and weeds and in one case, volunteer trees! In these instances natural runoff is
impossible. {if this continues, perhaps there should be a rule about who has to walk on the grass or mud
if two people are walking in opposite directionsl) 1 am suggesting here that walkways should be 100
percent clear all year long. And if sidewalks are clear the landscape maintenance contractor will be able
to edge both sides, improving drainage and runoff.

¢. Lastly, poor runoff damages our property resulting in additional expense repairing or replacing
sections of sidewalks before their time. Poor drainage on walkways can be a cause of heaving which
additionally creates trip hazards. As a member concerned about the ability to keep up with annual
increases of coop fees | suggest that we should continually address prevention measures.

| appreciate consideration of my comments and welcome any commaunication.

Best regards,



Ttem 6d. Attachment #8¢




) -ﬁ_ttggqmgrltwg Item 6d. Attachment #8c

1) Comments on : GHI IMPERVIOUS SURFACE RULES

| think that it might be a lot easier to understand the rules if they had a separate sections for pétios and
decks. The materials and construction are very different, and people generally know if they want a patio
(concrete, stone or pavement) or a deck {(elevated, using wood or plastic).

In fact there may be separate rules already for patios and decks. No?

| find the 20% of gross yard area is an unfair punishment for units with tiny yards (some 1 bedroom units
I guess, but GHI must know how small the smallest yards are). How many yards are less than
250*5=1250 square yd? If none, then the 20% is not needed anyway.

The rules does not consider the very poor value of lawns as quasi-pervious surfaces. Our lawns growing
on heavy clay are the closest thing to concrete...

If someone has a small yard, with 1/2 of it with a pervious patio (or deck) and the other 1/2 planted with
deep rooted native plants the yard would perform better than 100% lawn.

| realize that it would not be easy to take this into account and native plantings could be easily returned
to lawns by the next owner, but at least | would like to see some STRONG encouragement for everyone
to replace lawns by native plantings.

e.g. What about an award for largest area of lawn replacement every year?

The rules says that materials need to be pervious, so the elimination of pervious asphalt is odd. May as
well say that asphalt surfaces in general are not permitted at all for anything (e.g. extra parking,
walkways, patios). Is the reason for which pervious asphalt is excluded because it is not pervious
enough? or for aesthetic reasons?

If not "pervious enough"” then shouldn't some kind of measure of "perviousness" used? (e.g. | see that a
runoff coefficient exists, but this is not my specialty). Different pavers may also have varying coefficient
of perviousness.

in B3. "existing swales shall not be blocked by any structure or altered in any way by a Member that
would compromise the functioning of the swale".

Isn't time to clarify that planting deep rooted natives in swales is actually useful and increases the
function of the swale? Plants would not "blocking" the swale (unless members pile up a lot of muich
everywhere).

Other smaller comments:

isn/t the roof of a new shed a "new exterior surface structures"? |think it is... so they cannot be made
of impervious materials? That is quite odd. Clarify.

Later in the definitions | see that sheds are excluded... It would be a lot easier to have the background
and definitions before the rules

In E: The text mentions only “wooden boards” (for decks | assume), but what about all the newer
synthetic board materials? Not allowed? AH! later on the txt discuss the composite boards. So please
remove the word "wooden" from the 1st sentence of Section E



Item 6d. Attachment #8¢

In E3: Permeable Pavers. Does that include flagstones, or do flagstone go with bricks? or in a separate
section.

In E5c the text says: "Permeable concrete does require some maintenance to retain its permeability” .
Please explain what kind of maintenance is required (i have no clue). If difficult, then | would only allow
concrete if owners promise to maintain it, and future owners as well.

in E6: | think the sentence " Boards used for decking and porch flooring typically have spaces between
them, allowing water to flow between the boards to the underlying soil. " should go in the list of rules
for decks. it is a rule after all.

2) Comments on NEW SECTION XK. RUNOFF CAPTURE AND CONTROLREQUIREMENTS
The content seems fine but | really do not understand when this will be used?

Are those rules for people who volunteer to instal rain gardens or something else on their own? or are
we talking about mandatory mitigation measures that owners have to take if they add a new extension
or a shed? Or is it something that will help people with wet yards? Unclear.

Title: is the section title consistent with other sections. e.g. here it says "requirements” but the other
proposed section says "rules”. Isn't the whole book about rules and requirement anyway so why even
include those words.

You may want to say "Stormwater runoff" instead of just "runoff”

1 do not understand when a permit is required and when it is not. Clarify. In general | like to understand
why the permit is required.

Should the section start with something like: Members who are eager to participate in the reduction of
stormwater runoff from their yards can take one or more measures. Those measures include: XYZ. A
permit is required when XYZ. During the permit process GHI staff will need to verify that the proposed
measure does not negatively affect the integrity of the building, the function of swales, and
underground utilities.

At the end it says: "Requirements for rainbarrels and cisterns are contained in Section XXl of this
Handbook.” Oh no... Please combine all materials related to rainbarrels together in a single section (this
section seems best).

in general | find the example designs provided too vague to be useful, and too complex to be attractive
for a member to do on their own. E.g. the dry well need to be 8' deep? Noone is going to do that on
their own. Is something less deep useful at all?

Are there simpler rain garden designs that one can do easily on their own in their gardens?

Do they absolutely need to be 3 feet deep total? What if | wanted to do something smaller myself, e.g.
one foot deep? Is it useful? Do | still need a permit? More questions than answers or guidance in the
document.

Once again encouraging members to plant deep root natives in their yards (even the swales) is a useful
and practical measure to address runoff, is easier, and does not require a permit.



Item 6d. Attachment #8¢

For that reason | would prefer io see a document with the 1st section encouraging the planting of deep
rooted natives {(with examples), then section 2 about rain-barrels because people know them better,
then and only then the more complex measures (ideally with detailed examples of simpler designs than
what is shown now.)

Smali comments:

In 1b: the text says "Additions, patios, decks, sheds, etc. are impervious and prevent or substantially
impede the natural infiltration of water into the underlying soil."

May be say "Additions, sheds and impervious decks or patios” since the other proposed rules states that
new patios and decks need to be pervious.

In "Figure 1. Typical Raingarden Cross-Section":

| think the figure is unclear as to what the function of the "underdrain”. Does this tube actually need to
drain to a lower area? (hard to do in most cases) or is its role to hold water until the water can infiltrate
the soil. Linking to complete practical design documents would be best.



.ttachment 4 Item 6d. Attachment #8c

Member Comments
re: Proposed Rules
re: GHI Impervious Surface Rules

16 Mai 2022

¢ Change B. 1. d. to read;
Multiple allowable pervious materials are described in Sections E and F below.

¢ Recommend differentiating between fully pervious surfaces, such as gardens planted with
trees, shrubs and herbaceous plants, and semi-pervious surfaces, such as vegetated roofs,
permeable paving, landscaping rocks, and porches and decks erected on pier foundations that
maintain the covered surface’s water permeability. Here are examples (added text

highlighted):

A. PURPOSE

1. Part of GHI's mission is to maintain, protect and enhance the assets of our cooperative.
One of these assefs is green space, including swales. GH! encourages Members to keep
their yards in their natural condition as much as possible. This is consistent with the original
design of Greenbelt as a garden city. Swales are part of the original design of GHI and are
a natural way to control runoff and promote drainage. The impervious surface rules herein
do not limit the use of fully permeable green space, such as gardens planted with trees,
shrubs, and herbaceous plants.

2. The impervious surface rules herein are intended fo help maintain the benefits of natural
landscaping by limiting the amount of impervious surface in GH! yards and requiring use of
permeable and semi-permeable materials. These rules are intended to address increased
stormwater runoff, reduce or prevent flooding in GHI, and reduce negative effects on area
streams. Limiting the amount of impervious surface area in GHlI also helps Prince Georges
County meet its requirement to reduce pollution and flooding caused by rainfall.

B. RULES

1. Any new exterior surface structures (meaning those partially or totally outside of the
Member’s unit’s indoor liveable space) such as decks, patios, and walkways other than the
access sidewalks, must be constructed using pervious and/or semi-pervious materials.

a. Exterior surface structures may not be constructed with impervious materials such as
concrete, asphalt, or non-porous composite or conglomerate materials.

b. Use of porous asphalt in GHI yards is not allowed.

c. Exterior elevated structures, such as decks and porches, may contain concrete pylons in
their design.

d. Multiple allowable pervious and semi-pervious materials are described in Sections E and
F below.



Item 6d. Attachment #8c¢

2. Semi-pervious exterior surfaces such as patios and decks may cover a single contiguous
area up to a maximum area of 250 sq ft or 20% of the gross yard area, whichever value is
smaller, or multiple distinct areas totaling no more than 250 sq ft. or 20% of the gross yard
area, whichever vaiue is smaller. Previously existing impervious exterior surface structures
such as patios and decks count against the total maximum allowable square footage noted
in this rule.

D. DEFINITIONS

1. Impervious surface: a hard surface area that prevents or substantially impedes the
natural infiltration of water into the underlying soil, resulting in an increased volume and
velocity of surface water runoff. Impervious surfaces include, but are not limited to,
buildings; patios, decks, sidewalks, driveways, pavement, parking areas, and driveways
constructed of concrete or asphalt; artificial turf, compacted gravel, and hard-surfaced
recreational areas (e.g., tennis couris).

2. Pervious surface: a surface that aliows water to percolate into the underlying soil.
Pervious surfaces include natural forest, and gardens planted with trees, shrubs, and
herbaceous plants.

3. Semi-pervious surface: a surface that partially allows water to percolate into the
underlying soil. Semi-pervious surfaces include vegetated roofs, permeable paving, and
porches and decks erected on pier foundations that partially maintain the covered surface’s
water permeability.

[Note: renumber the defined terms that follow #3.]



-Attach,.gaﬁmé Item 6d. Attachment #8c

Member Comments
re: Proposed Rules
re: Impervious Surfaces and Run-off Capture and Control Requirements

16 May 2022

1. Consider combining #4 and #5 to read:

The construction of any of the capture and/or control measures described in Sections 5-7
below shall require a Type |l permit. The permit application is described in Section X.C of
this Handbook. If the construction of any of the capture and/or control measures described
in Sections 5-7 below are proposed as part of a proposed exterior alteration, improvement,
or addition, the permit application for these measures shall be included as part of the permit
application for the proposed exterior alteration, improvement, or addition.

2. Descriptions and illustrations of raingarden and dry well construction and function are
excellent.



XVIL MEMBER-COMPLAINT PROCEDURE

A. INTRODUCTION

This publication formally documents steps that are taken to resolve complaints which-are
lodged-agatnstmerberss-of involving Greenbelt Homes, Incorporated, its members and others.
The procedure is one which evolved through experience in dealing with various types of
complaints.

Foremost in all considerations is insuringsensuring fair treatment-to-all-membersof-the
Corperation. Some features whick-aredncerporated in these procedures so-protectali-partos

include executive sessions held to maintain privacy; meetings scheduled at-the-convenienec-of
the-member {0 accommodate the person who is the subject of the complaint (“Respondent”), as
well as anv individual who submitted the complaint (“Complainant”) and to accommodate the
members of the Panel, or Board, as the case may be; notice of the complaint in writing,
informingrand the memaber > int-{reforred-to-as-the “respondent”

m—the—pmeeé&&e%)—ﬂ%meéResgondem of 1) the charge or charges against him or her, 2.) his
or her right to;present information. to make a statement and to have an assistant or lezal counsel

at appropriate points in the procedure-errepresentative, 3.) his or her opportunity to meet the
comphinant Complainant face-to-face in appropriate cases, and 4.) his or her right to appeal a

Board decision to the membership.

A Complainant max be a member of the Corperation or mav be any resident of the GHI
wrfum.umtw The Corporation also may be the Comnlainant in any case where alieged
violations have been observed byv..or reporied to, Management,

A Respondent may be a member of the Corporation or may be any residenl of the GH]
community, or any family merber, tenant, guest, associate or contractor of anv member_tenant
or resident of the GHI community.

GHI hopes that these procedures will help all members understand their rights and obligations
and provide future Complaints Panels and Boards with a standard format for processing
complaints.

B. POLICY STATEMENT ON HANDLING-MEMBER COMPLAINTS

It is the policy of Greenbelt Homes, Inc. to ensure fair and equitable treatment for-each
mermberin these procedures.

The MuhiakOwaceship Confract pledses-that his-or hor-comfort-and-peace-of-mind-shall-be
P Fieas ;
SIS i srveliasad 5ol the S

The following procedures gre in accordance with the Corporation’s Bylaws and have been
formulated to protect the interests of the C or;:or'-'t wn the members— and others-interests-as-well

Provision has been made for detailed-preliminary investigation of facts and for clarification of
cherges-allegations at-any early-dateto help prewentaresolve minor complaints Som-growing-te

o= ‘LFonnatted. Font: (Default) Times New Roman



Revised DANFY - 05/02/2022

before they

become worse.

All meetings eencerned-with-membercomplaintsin this procedure will be held in executive
session, except for the member’s appeal to the membership.

C

D.

SOURCES AND BASIS BASES OF COMPLAINTS

1. The Corporation receives complaints-ageinst-merabers-in from a number of

svayssources, including a.) next door neighbors, b.) srerbess-persons residing in the

same court or area, and c) Management inspections;and-d-}-peitions-fromneighbors
inthe-area.

. Complaints can be based on alleged violations of a.) the Mutual Ownership Contract,

p;e%wem&ym%é%mm—&wm “Rades-and
lations : 2 Mlmg—«-—wiwbstak—fhﬂ%——%

i RS . : 5 e b.) GHI regulatnons—sa&‘tﬁs
par-}eﬂg—a;—shed—segu}a&eas-L ¢.) GHI Bylaws, or d ) City, County, or State Laws or

ordinances.

. In-theseeases-where-Board-acion-may-benocossary the complainisare-asked to

Complaints should be made in writing to Management, or, when appropriate,

Management may prepares a memorandum summarizing the complaint.

INITIAL ACTION BY MANAGEMENT

1. When Management heass-is notified of a complaint, #-nvestigates-the complaint will

be investizated to ascertain the facts. Management may speak with the Complainant
and Respondent to try to resclve the matter informally,

. After this fact-finding investigation, if the comzlaint is unresolv ed&-}-vwaff&ﬁeé

Management prepares-will prepare a letter to the
respondentRespondent, giving the aature-details of the complamt and askmg for

cooperation ¢r compliance within a reasonable period. A copy of this letter is-aisawill
be given to the Chair of the Member Complaints Panel.

. If a certain date for compliance has been given in the letter, Management cheeks will

review the situation after that date to see lf corrective action was taken-by-the
mefp«be; Hthe. the At smatter hag been

Qgrcpnate may recommend Commumty y Mediation to ‘he omplamanbs; and
Respondent. A free, voluntary mediation service is available through the City of
Greenbelt and is-may be recommended priestsbefore the matter being-is referred to

2



Revised DRAFE - 05/02/2022

the Member Complaints Panel. This process is entirely-confidential and utilizes
trained mediators outside of the Cooperative. If a resolution is reached through the

process of medmhon, the parties involved-<clearlyspecifing theirmutual sightsand
will sign a written eantractagreement. If either-partythe

R@gpm dent subse‘;uenﬂv breaches the agreement and the sratter-complaint is
brought back to Management, the matter may then be referred to the Chair-of-the

Member Complaints Panel, along with a copy of the agreement, for further action, as
appropriate.
E. REFERRAL TO COMPLAINTS PANEL

If manapementinformal action by Management, or Community Mediatipn, does not resolve the
complaint, the matter is-will be referred to the Chair of the Member Complaints Panel. The
Member Complaints Panel is a committee created by the Board, which consists of not less than
three members of the Board. The Panel decides will review the matfer and will decide what, i
any, course of action should be iaken by the Corgorahon If—Q-IamrmmmLMeéiat*eﬁ—hasbeen
- : i cration: GeaerallyUsually,
the Panel meets-will meet thh the membepagaias&wham—ﬂaeeem?lam%%-éleﬁes}gonden
and anv Complainants. In exceptional cases, if the complaint is of such a nature that urgent
action is needed, the Panel may recommend an early meeting ef-between the Board, any
Complainants, skith-the rremberand the Respondent.

F. MEETING WITH COMPLAINTS PANEL

1. If a meeting is necessary, Management will arrange-sct a sautualiy-satistactory date
for the meeting with the Panel, with the person-named-in-thacorplaintRespondent

and with any Complainants who will be attending. To encouraze an open and
amicable discussion to resolve the matter, neither the Reswondent. nor any

Comp ainangs[ may ha\ e l(_gal cauncei prcsent atl 'h.l& meeg' ing. Likewise, legal counsel

2, ThemeetingbegnswithAt the meeting, the Panel members will be introduced to-the
vis#ox by the Chair. The Chair then establishes-will exriain the agenda for the
meeting as follows:

a. Management zeviews-will provide 2 summary of the complaint and any related
correspondence leading to the meeting.

b. The Chair askswill ask any Comylainants in attendance and the membermeeting
m-th—i-he—l-meiRe;pondent for any additional relevant information fegafémg-the
eompliant-whichthat may not have been covered by managemertManagement.

c. Panel members may ask for such additional information as-fhey-fectis-needed for
them to come to a fair decision$errecommended-frtureachon.




Revised DRAFE - 05/02/2022

d. The Panel disexss will discuss the complaint with anv Complainants
and with the membea‘—Resmndent and will seeks to arrive at a mutually =
satisfactory resolution. Mest-of-the-complaints-whichreach-thislevel-are settled-at
his-point

G. COMPLAINTS FPANEL'S ACTION

The Panel will considers-adéitional all information presented by-the-rresnberat the meeting, or

ifesented in writing. The Panel may 7 recommend to the Board:

a1. That no action is needed as the complaint was not valid or that the mesmber
willRespendent has azreed to take corrective action, or

b—That-the-Boasrd-should meet-withth

€2, That the Board should hold a formal hearing with the eemplaining memberany
Complainants and the respendentRespondent, and with any witnesses called for
the purpose of determining the merits of the complaint, and-aey-pessible should
make a decision as to any formal action to be taken.

1 Presidentiniroduces Beard members: Ll .Eo!'mahed: Indent Left 0", First line: ¢"

1H. FORMAL HEARING

Iﬂ—ih(-‘-@*‘-ﬁﬁ-}ﬂf the Board of D1rectors resolves to hold a formal heanng with the Reaﬂ'mdent ana

&e_ Corporahon may have its legal counsel present, and the sespendentResrondent may have



Revised PRAFE- 05/02/2022

merson to assist them, or may have lesal

counseL m;_eaent at the he g-aa—t-he-fespeaée;;%éeemsﬂeeessa&
1. Notification

The ManagernotifiesManagernent will notify all parties, i.e., thecomplainantand

omglaman‘s and_the respendentRespondent, of the hearing. The letter of
notification is-may be hand-delivered, sent by a recognized overnight courier service
with confirmation of delivery or sent by certified mail- return receipt requested. This
letter-shouldnotification shall include certainitemssuch-as the time, date and place of
the mestinghearing; notice of the right of the Respondent to have-present evidence
and mmesses-aaé-Fe«px-eﬁe&tabea notice of the right of the Respondent to have
somegnpe present to assist or to have lejzal counsel present at the hearing; possibly-the
asendara-quoteof the text of the regulation and/er bylaw or other provision that is

alleged to have been violated; a detailed-summary of the complaint; and 2 summary
of the possible samificaticns-resulting:-mmactions that mizht be taken by the
Corporation after the hearing-A-requirerent-is-that, including 1 possible legal action
and notice of the Corporalion’s nower to terminate Membership for violations, under
the Mutual Qwnershir Contract and under Sectiendb-of Article ITI, Section 4b of the
Corporation’s Bvlaws (Fermination-of Mesmbershipyof the GHl bylaws isincluded.
The notice also shall state that the Board may yroceed with the hearing and may
make a decision on the matter if the Respiondent is not present at the hearine, If the
Respondent notifies Management in writing that he 1e/she wishes to attend the hearing,
but, for rood and sufficient reasons. cannot attend at the scheduled time or date of the
hearing, the Board mav reschedule the hearing and shall notify all parties of the
rescheduled date and time. '

2. Hearing Procedures

add:; The hearing shall be held in executive session.
Atsny HLarmq the Board may require any the witnesses for the epriplainant
Complainants and the respeﬁéea%Recgandent tp wait outside the hearing room for
theis-turasuntil thev are called to speak. The President of the Board asts-will act as
Chair for the hearing. Bresent-dusingthe-entire-The hearing aze must | be attended bv a
guorumm of the Corporation’s the Board of Directors, the-duditCorrmittee-memmbers;
representatives of the GEF-MenngesManarement- and the Corporation’s recording
secretary, and mayv be attended by Andit Committee members, by any
Complainantsthe-cemplainast; and by the respondentRespondent, who may have an
assistant with-sepresentative of legal counsel present. The Corporation may have its
legal counsel present. Witnesses ave-may be called in individually at appropriate
times. Adbpresentareasked-to-keep-information-presented-at-the heariagin
confidence. If proper notice of the hearing has been given to the Respondent, the
Board may proceed with the hearing, and mav make a decision on the matter,
whether or not the Respondent is in attendance, During the formal meeting, a
transcript of the proceedings is-will be made. A copy of the transcript is-wili be made

5



- 05/02/2022

available to the respendentResuondent if he or she decides to appeal the decision to
the membership.

3. Hearing Agenda
. The President intreduces-will introduce Board members and others present.

b. The President Wfpeseeﬁmeehﬁamjl explain the purpose of the hearing and
aﬁeweu—w:ll explain the senousness of ?fe(-feeé z;-us—the matter, a.nd will cautions
those present to keep £ 2 all
matters discussed at the hearing conhdcnﬂal

¢. The President will explain thatindicates the final-decision efmade by the Board
after the hearing may be appealed to the Corporation’s membership at a-
membership meeting.

d. Mamager-A Management representative will summmarize the facts of the compiaint
and any provisions of the rules or other governing documents allered to have been
violatedreviews-the-avents and will summarize Managernent's investization, the

correspondence-thatledto-the-mecting and any other relevant information
obtained by Management before the hearing. He-ershe-answers[he Management
repzesentative will respond to any questions about this-material-that the Board of
Directors or others may have.

e. The President then asks-will ask anv Complainants the-cemplairsnt to add-make
any new-statements or eomsaents-provide any additional information that may be
appropriate to-update-the-easefor the Board's consideration, and to nresent

f. The respendentRespondent and his or her sepresentadive-assistant or attorney aze
then will be given a«eham—e—tegrve-ﬂ'sea—wevﬁm f)ppormnm 0 m,a.ke any

BOﬂld s cmwdezatlon and o "sre“en*. tEaumonv from any wxmessesalrt—é}us—&me-

idrr

g._The Respondent and his or her assistant or altorney also shali be permitted to raise . 4 Formatted: Font: Bold

ask questions with-theof Mamgggment or of any eamgia&m#—{ ‘omplainant or

witness about any-facts in-the-case- wkaeh-ma*r notbe-cloar-fo-himeer-hertheir
statements or evidence. These duestons must be directed to the President. who
then will ask the appropriate perscn to respond.

h._The GHI-Corporation’s legal counsel, if present, and Board members may ask e Zﬂ Formatted: Font; Bold

duect questions to any ‘Complainants, to any witnesses “and to the Respondentfer

darification-of any materials-presented by cither-porty.




Revised DRAFE - 05/02/2022

i. Atthe conclusxon of the appearance-of-al-presentations of evidence and witnesses,

-Compslainant may present a sesaasyconcluding

statemen as may the respondentRespondent or his or her representativeassistant
or legal counsel.

j- The President adjourns-the-formalthen yill adi adioum ihe hearmg and excuse ali

sersons in attendance-ealis-the Boarddn : :

k. After the Comylainants, the Respondent and any witngsses or others have
departed, the President shall reconvene the Board in executive session, with
Maragement, the Corporation’s lezal commsel fifin atterdance, and any Audit

Comunitice members in attendance.

L BOARD REACHES DECISION

In this executive session, the Board reviewswill discuss the evidence and any other information
. reaented atthe heam‘g ¢ and will reach 2 decision. Ha-decision-is possible- based-on-the

S e hen a-The rropiosed decision shall be presented as a
formal motxon—y-—maée—aﬂd—&céeé-ép wh.u:h may include but is not limited to one of the
following:

1. Dismiss-To dismiss the complaint because of lack of sufficient evidence or because of
sitigatingcireumstaneesniher sufficent reasons.

2. Alew-To allow a certain additicnal time for the respendentRespondent to correct the
matter which was the subject of the hearing before final-enforcement action is taken

by the Corporation,

3. DirecttheManagesTo direct Management to initiate action to terminate the member’s
eentract-Mutual Ownership Contract within a reasonable period{30-te-45-daysy-or,
and. if necessary, ko initiate legal action to have any occupants evicted from the vrit.

4. EideTo file a formal action for administrative or judicial relief.

A two—thirds vote of the ent'u:e Board is required en-aedensto terminate a contract. Other

A formal letter is-will be written by the Manager to the respendentRespandent notifying him or
hear of the Board’s decision and of any action o be taken. The letter may be hand-delivered:

7




Revised DRAFT - 05/02/2022

sent by a recoenized overnight courier service with confirmation of delivery. or sent by certified
mail- return receipt requested. If the letter states that the Board has directed a termination of the
Mutual Ownership Contract, seferenceis madeto the letter will summarize the member’s right
to appeal the Board’s decision to the Corjioration’s membership at the next special or annual
mernbershin meeting (Section 4b, Article IIT of the GHI Bylaws). A letter is-also wil! be written

to any Comrlamam@sununargmﬂyeeemp}am&fegafémg‘the Board’s action.
¥KJ. MEMBER'S APPEAL TO THE MEMBERSHIP

L Notificaion e 1 Formatted: Fort: Bold
) k Formatted: Font: Bold

If a—éee&s:anthe Board decides. to termmate a member’s Mutual Ownership Contract4s  ~

5 ] e
: s = ;! &, and if the member intends to appeal the jirormattedIncent Lot 0.8

Board’s dedision fo the Corporation’s membc,ra}'up the member must notify
-Management , in writing and within ten (10) days ¢f4he
recedptafter delivery of the Corporahon s letter notifying his-er-herthe member of
termination. If he-ersheintendsthe member notifies Management of the intention to
appeal the Board's decision to the mm\basmp—ﬂm&eﬂ—ﬁm&gnﬂggggmt
shall notify the Board. The Board deddes-then will decide whether this appeal will be
heard at the next Annual Membership Meetmg or whether circumstances require a
Special Membership Meeting in advance of the Annual Membership Meeting.

2. Membership Meeting — Board Presentation. _ ______________________ . Formatted: Font. 8old

; arporation-At the
A.nnual or Soedal Memberf-h g Meetmg the membas \resent wﬂ] be no’ahed of the
Resi:ondent’s avpeal. A representative of the Board or Manarement then wxﬂfemws-ﬂie
circumstanecesmake a presentation summarizing the evidence and the basis for thatledie
the Beard's decision to terminate the member’s centzactMutual Ownership Confract.

3. Membershiz Meeting — Member Presentation. - Formatted: Font: Bold

_ Next-+The member, or kis-o=herthe member’s attorney or sepresentativesssistant,

addressesaformalnppealmay make a presentation to the membership, explaining the
reasons for the appeal. A period of time is-will be provided for the members present to

ask for additional information from the Board or the respondentmember to help them
reach a fair decision.

4. Membership Meeting ~Voteon Appeal ... { Formatted: Font: Bold
ﬁt—After the conclusion of the presentations and question period a “show of cards” vote « - 7 Formatted: Indent Left. 05"




Itern 6e. Attachment #9b

XVII. COMPLAINT PROCEDURE

A. INTRODUCTION

This publication formally documents steps that are taken to resolve complaints involving
Greenbelt Homes, Incorporated, its members and others. The procedure is one which evolved
through experience in dealing with various types of complaints.

Foremost in all considerations is ensuring fair treatment. Some features in these procedures
include executive sessions held to maintain privacy; meetings scheduled to reasonably
accommodate the person who is the subject of the complaint (“Respondent”), as well as any
individual who submitted the complaint (“Complainant”) and to reasonably accommodate the
members of the Panel, or Board, as the case may be; notice of the complaint in writing,
informing the Respondent of 1.) the charge or charges against him or her, 2.) his or her right to
present information, to make a statement and to have an assistant or legal counsel at
appropriate points in the procedure, 3.) his or her opportunity to meet the Complainant face-to-
face in appropriate cases, and 4.) his or her right to appeal a Board decision to the membership.

A Complainant may be a member of the Corporation or may be any resident of the GHI
community. The Corporation also may be the Complainant in any case where alleged
violations have been observed by, or reported to, Management.

A Respondent may be a member of the Corporation or may be any resident of the GHI
community, or any family member, tenant, guest, associate or contractor of any member, tenant
or resident of the GHI community.

GHI hopes that these procedures will help all members understand their rights and obligations
and provide future Complaints Panels and Boards with a standard format for processing
complaints.

B. POLICY STATEMENT ON HANDLING COMPLAINTS

It is the policy of Greenbelt Homes, Inc. to ensure fair and equitable treatment in these
procedures.

The following procedures are in accordance with the Corporation’s Bylaws and have been
formulated to protect the interests of the Corporation, the members and others.

Provision has been made for preliminary investigation of facts and for clarification of
allegations to help resolve minor complaints before they become worse.

All meetings in this procedure will be held in executive session, except for the membet’s appeal
to the membership.



Revised PRAFT - 05/02/2022



Revised DRAFT - 05/02/2022
C. SOURCES AND BASES OF COMPLAINTS

1. The Corporation receives complaints from a number of sources, including a.) next
door neighbors, b.) persons residing in the same court or area, and c.) Management
inspections.

2. Complaints can be based on alleged violations of a.) the Mutual Ownership Contract,
b.) GHI regulations, c.) GHI Bylaws; or d.) City, County, or State Laws or ordinances.

3. Complaints should be made in writing to Management, or, when appropriate,
Management may prepare a memorandum summarizing the complaint.

D. INITIAL ACTION BY MANAGEMENT

1. When Management is notified of a complaint, the complaint will be investigated to
ascertain the facts. Management may speak with the Complainant and Respondent to
try to resolve the matter informally.

2. After this fact-finding investigation, if the complaint is unresolved, Management will
prepare a letter to the Respondent, giving the details of the complaint and asking for
cooperation or compliance within a reasonable period. A copy of this letter will be
given to the Chair of the Member Complaints Panel.

3. If a certain date for compliance has been given in the letter, Management will review
the situation after that date to see if corrective action was taken. If the matter has been
resolved, no further action will be needed.

4. If a complaint is not resolved, Management, if appropriate, may recommend
Community Mediation to the Complainant(s) and Respondent. A free, voluntary
mediation service is available through the City of Greenbelt and may be
recommended before the matter is referred to the Member Complaints Panel. This
process is confidential and utilizes trained mediators outside of the Cooperative. If a
resolution is reached through the process of mediation, the parties involved will sign
a written agreement. If the Respondent subsequently breaches the agreement and the
complaint is brought back to Management, the matter may then be referred to the
Member Complaints Panel, along with a copy of the agreement, for further action, as
appropriate.

E. REFERRAL TO COMPLAINTS PANEL

If informal action by Management, or Community Mediation, does not resolve the complaint,
the matter will be referred to the Chair of the Member Complaints Panel. The Member
Complaints Panel is a committee created by the Board, which consists of not less than three
members of the Board. The Panel will review the matter and will decide what, if any, course of
action should be taken by the Corporation. Usually, the Panel will meet with the Respondent
and any Complainants. In exceptional cases, if the complaint is of such a nature that urgent

3



Revised BRAFY - 05/02/2022

action is needed, the Panel may recommend an early meeting between the Board, any
Complainants, and the Respondent.

F. MEETING WITH COMPLAINTS PANEL

1. If a meeting is necessary, Management will set a date for the meeting with the Panel,
with the Respondent and with any Complainants who will be attending. To
encourage an open and amicable discussion to resolve the matter, neither the
Respondent, nor any Complainants, may have legal counsel present at this meeting.
Likewise, legal counsel for the Corporation will not be present at the meeting.

2. At the meeting, the Panel members will be introduced by the Chair. The Chair then
will explain the agenda for the meeting as follows:

a. Management will provide a summary of the complaint and any related
correspondence leading to the meeting.

b. The Chair will ask any Complainants in attendance and the Respondent for any
additional relevant information that may not have been covered by Management.

¢. Panel members may ask for such additional information needed for them to come
to a fair decision.

d. The Panel will discuss the complaint with any Complainants and with the
Respondent and will seek to arrive at a mutually satisfactory resolution.

G. COMPLAINTS PANEL’S ACTION

The Panel will consider all information presented at the meeting, or presented in writing. The
Panel may recommend to the Board:

1. That no action is needed as the complaint was not valid or that the Respondent has
agreed to take corrective action, or

2. That the Board should hold a formal hearing with the any Complainants and the
Respondent, and with any witnesses called for the purpose of determining the
merits of the complaint, and should make a decision as to any formal action to be
taken.

H. FORMAL HEARING

If the Board of Directors resolves to hold a formal hearing with the Respondent and any
Complainants, the Corporation may have its legal counsel present, and the Respondent may
have a person to assist them, or may have legal counsel, present at the hearing.

1. Notification



Revised DRAFY.- 05/02/2022

Management will notify all parties, i.e., and Complainants and the Respondent, of the
hearing. The letter of notification may be hand-delivered, sent by a recognized
overnight courier service with confirmation of delivery or sent by certified mail-
return receipt requested. This notification shall include the time, date and place of the
hearing; notice of the right of the Respondent to present evidence and witnesses;
notice of the right of the Respondent to have someone present to assist or to have
legal counsel present at the hearing; the text of the regulation, bylaw or other
provision that is alleged to have been violated; a summary of the complaint; and a
summary of the possible actions that might be taken by the Corporation after the
hearing, including possible legal action and notice of the Corporation’s power to
terminate Membership for violations, under the Mutual Ownership Contract and
under Article I, Section 4b of the Corporation’s Bylaws.. The notice also shall state
that the Board may proceed with the hearing and may make a decision on the matter
if the Respondent is not present at the hearing,. If the Respondent notifies
Management in writing that he/she wishes to attend the hearing, but, for good and
sufficient reasons, cannot attend at the scheduled time or date of the hearing, the
Board may reschedule the hearing and shall notify all parties of the rescheduled date
and time.

2. Hearing Procedures

The hearing shall be held in executive session. At any hearing, the Board may require
any witnesses for the Complainants and the Respondent to wait outside the hearing
room until they are called to speak. The President of the Board will act as Chair for
the hearing. The hearing must be attended by a quorum of the Corporation’s the
Board of Directors, representatives of the Management and the Corporation’s
recording secretary, and may be attended by Audit Committee members, by any
Complainants and by the Respondent, who may have an assistant or legal counsel
present. The Corporation may have its legal counsel present. Witnesses may be called
in individually at appropriate times. If proper notice of the hearing has been given to
the Respondent, the Board may proceed with the hearing, and may make a decision
on the matter, whether or not the Respondent is in attendance. During the formal
meeting, a transcript of the proceedings will be made. A copy of the transcript will be
made available to the Respondent if he or she decides to appeal the decision to the
membership.

3. Hearing Agenda
a. The President will introduce Board members and others present.

b. The President will explain the purpose of the hearing, will explain the seriousness
of the matter, and will caution those present to keep all matters discussed at the

hearing confidential.

c. The President will explain that the decision made by the Board after the hearing
may be appealed to the Corporation’s membership at a membership meeting.
5



Revised DRAFT - 05/02/2022

d.

A Management representative will summarize the facts of the complaint and any
provisions of the rules or other governing documents alleged to have been violated
and will summarize Management's investigation, the correspondence and any
other relevant information obtained by Management before the hearing. The
Management representative will respond to any questions about that the Board of
Directors or others may have.

The President then will ask any Complainants to make any statements or provide
any additional information that may be appropriate for the Board’s consideration,
and to present testimony from any witnesses.

The Respondent and his or her assistant or attorney then will be given an
opportunity to make any statements or provide any additional information that
may be appropriate for the Board’s consideration, and to present testimony from
any witnesses.

The Respondent and his or her assistant or attorney also shall be permitted to ask
questions of Management or of any Complainant or witness about their statements
or evidence. These questions must be directed to the President, who then will ask
the appropriate person to respond.

The Corporation’s legal counsel, if present, and Board members may direct
questions to any Complainants, to any witnesses and to the Respondent.

At the conclusion of the presentations of evidence and witnesses, the Complainant
may present a concluding statement, as may the Respondent or his or her assistant
or legal counsel.

The President then will adjourn the hearing and excuse all persons in attendance.

After the Complainants, the Respondent and any witnesses or others have
departed, the President shall reconvene the Board in executive session, with
Management, the Corporation’s legal counsel (if in attendance), and any Audit
Committee members in attendance.

L BOARD DECISION

In this executive session, the Board will discuss the evidence lancl any other information
presented at the hearing and will reach a decision. The proposed decision shall be presented as
a formal motion which may include but is not limited to one of the following:

1.

To dismiss the complaint because of lack of sufficient evidence or because of other
sufficient reasons,

To allow a certain additional time for the Respondent to correct the matter which was
the subject of the hearing before enforcement action is taken by the Corporation,

6



Revised DRAFT - 05/02/2022

3. To direct Management to initiate action to terminate the member’s Mutual Ownership
Contract within a reasonable period, and, if necessary, to initiate legal action to have
any occupants evicted from the unit.

4. To file a formal action for administrative or judicial relief.

A two-thirds vote of the entire Board is required to terminate a contract. Other actions require
only a majority vote of those Board members present at the hearing.

A formal letter will be written by the Manager to the Respondent notifying him or hear of the
Board’s decision and of any action to be taken. The letter may be hand-delivered, sent by a
recognized overnight courier service with confirmation of delivery or sent by certified mail-
return receipt requested. If the letter states that the Board has directed a termination of the
Mutual Ownership Contract, the letter will summarize the member’s right to appeal the
Board’s decision to the Corporation’s membership at the next special or annual membership
meeting (Section 4b, Article III of the GHI Bylaws). A letter also will be written to any
Complainants summarizing the Board’s action.

J- MEMBER’S APPEAL TO THE MEMBERSHIP

1. Notification

If the Board decides to terminate a member’s Mutual Ownership Contract, and if the
member intends-to appeal the Board’s decision to the Corporation’s membership, the
member must notify Management, in writing and within ten (10) days after delivery of
the Corporation’s letter notifying the member of termination. If the member notifies
Management of the intention to appeal the Board’s decision to the membership,
Management shall notify the Board. The Board then will decide whether this appeal will
be heard at the next Annual Membership Meeting or whether circumstances require a
Special Membership Meeting in advance of the Annual Membership Meeting.

2. Membership Meeting — Board Presentation

At the Annual or Special Membership Meeting, the members present will be notified of
the Respondent’s appeal. A representative of the Board or Management then will make a
presentation summarizing the evidence and the basis for the Board’s decision to
terminate the member’s Mutual Ownership Contract.

3. Membership Meeting — Member Presentation.

The member, or the member’s attorney or assistant, may make a presentation to the
membership, explaining the reasons for the appeal. A period of time will be provided for
the members present to ask for additional information from the Board or the member to
help them reach a fair decision.

4. Membership Meeting - Vote on Appeal

7



Revised [IREFT - 05/02/2022

After the conclusion of the presentations and question period, a “show of cards” vote
will be taken to determine whether or not the membership supports the Board’s action to
terminate the contract. This decision of the membership is final.



Item 6f. Attachment #10

sjuauodwio)) pareyg .
10Z°01C  § | 02S'¥E9 $ | 088069 $ | OFsE $J3s MOPUIM
-syeak (g s1 sadid paury Jo Asuejoadxs o] “Suneos xoda
e PIM pE-0g07 Tunnp sowoy Kruosew ut Suidid 9)semyA(ddns
Pue ‘RZ-p707 Sunnp sawioy suresj ut sadid sem euiduo
Surar o paseq are §3807)'3J1f 921A38 SuO] B SARY [[11S p[NOYS
pue 1861 UI Pa[[eIsul a1om sauroy swrexy ur sodid A[ddns 1addo) SLo'080'8 ¢ | 000'0vP'L | $6-06 |Surdid msem pue Ajddns 1a3ep
COT'6E $ | €668LL $ hvm.mmmJ $| s $19jeay J3e M\
796°L6 $| 0z sdund dumng
TESOL $ | OLY' PV $ | 968°CZ8 $ | Spse (jAwra) 3uiprg
‘we|d 1eaL-(¢ STY) UI PApU{OUT JOU AXE §)S0D Judwoe|dal
T2y 20Uy ‘SIedA G/, JO SJI] POIEINS UL dALY SJOOI e[S €T6'C0S'T  $ SLVT AJuosews ‘sjooy
801961 § §T sawoy J33re] ‘sj00y
, STL'Y6T'T $ | ST awresj‘(yaied 2 utew) sjooy
€99°00S‘T  $ ST A1uoseus ‘sjool Yo1og
6v7'T6 § | 910°svT $ | S66°cr $ | OFb-SE $100(] 9dUERUY
oy 199 $ ST sweyy ‘sdools gorod
‘S 1$0Z mnt.:v sawoy Io8xe| 10J pue “H¢O7 01 002!
Suunp soed axe) 0) panpoyos sawWoy AJUOSEW pue dwely 10J
sjuaweoe]day “sjpem ur SuLm Jo uawace[dar sapnjoxs {s19pno
pue sayoyms pue spaued dure-cz| Jo Juowrooerdar sopn[ouf| 8ZH'6LT  $ | 908'0E9'T  $ | 668'12LT  $ | 06-0L SWIAISAS [edLnoa]g|
. Wo)sAs SOWOYUMOY |
a3eurelp JOLI9IXS Ue PUE SjuaUIaseq uf Sudid Jourur sapnpou]| peg'vve $ 0S 193re| ‘swaysAs oFeurel(!
o o oLy'I0L _ $ [VEVSYE  $ | ST siergay Jurjra))|
SLY'L1Y $18c'z8l  $ | ¢S¢ $39j83Y preogaseq
. S19'¥8T $ €7 | s100p % sjooz a3eIed Bﬁﬂé_w
08595 § | | /4 SeuOH 1531e] ‘JVAH
saqueyy SaUIoH L | a1
syiemy Jadxey KLmosepy El T g | Jusuodmo;),

LP0Z 01 8107 Surnp groz$ ut saamyrpuadxy 341959y Jusmrade[day] pajewnysy



Item 6f. Attachment #10

8107 ur193pnq
%880 %190 %81°0 QY1 JO 947 [ 2Te SUONNGIAUOD SAISAT
1590] dood [[BISAO Ul 95BDIDUL g5 [EnUUR ISH
~ suopnqIuuods

DAJSS3 Ul ISEDIOUI g [enuue 15T

%0T'9 %0e’Y wBH¥P'E

sowrof] Jo81e] | sowloy Amuosely | SowoH swex]

LPOT 9 8107 SuLing uel] 241359y Juduradejday 3y} punyj o) sUoHNGLIUO)) JIGUIITA] UT SISEAINU] [ENUUY PIjemInsy

%181 = 0091 / Sowioy 6T :SOWOH Io31e «

%61°9€ = Q091 / SIUOY LG :SAUOH AIUOSEIA o

%T9 = 0091 / SSWOY 766 -SAWOH SWel] o

SmMoO[[o] se popmojeo st odfy Susnoy yowo 10§ 1500 paeys oeuontodord oy pue ssmoy (QQ9T SUERIUOD JHD CYoBS UI  SowOY

Jo Jequimu a2y} 0} uonzodold uI S)UNO22E Pajedtpap 2a1) oy Suowe pouorpodde ore sjusuodiod pareqs 2soy) Joj 1500 Y], “od4) swoy suo Aue 0) pje[al
Aposnp 1ou axe e sjusuodwos pareys Jo Joquinu v 2B 2391 ‘sdnoid swioy ¢ ayy Joj sjusuodwiod patedIpap Yy o3 uonippe U - syuaucduio)) pareys .

L6TTSYL $| LEL'BLS'BY  §| OTI'PYPTT $ IST0Z$ W 51500 (101,

€EC0€  §| 18P'v09 $| s85's€0'1  §| STOT 531912

SPO'CS  $ |8I90KO'T  $ |L9L'T8LT  $ | SL Sudid 1amas punoid.Lapuf)

6€1°01  §|S1LT02 $|88TivE $| 0C sfoos 250403 (p1usy

£92'¢ $ | 1€2'S9 $lesLTiT §| ST s400p 23p4n8 [oyusy

20v]d nvawld W-9Z puv -V

WPISHIH d-ST ‘PY 12I534)

165y $ [ 16L'16 $ | pSTLST  $ | 001-61 H-09 10 Sjiom Suruiviay

(spunos8dvyd

8YT'E $ | 8£6'V9 $ losz'Til $| ST £) suonupaouas punoi3lold |

SL9'TT  § | LBE'ESK $ |ceL'oLL $| ST s10] Suppvd

€T6VT  § |TIE'86¥ $ [869'¢cS8  $ | SL SYIPMIPIS 124000 |

5 332& AP

‘s42102Y p4p0Qqasvq ‘Sfoot

£TV9  § | Tep'sLl $ |L20'0cT | Op-S1 | ‘smopum - Suippng unupy
e | R el L,

_renioy | aefawy | Amosepy awwdg ! jusnedmo)

LP0Z 03 8107 Surnp gyoz$ uI saxmipuadxy aszasay jusmadejday pajewnsy



